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Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors, the business performance
of Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31st December, 2007 is
summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS

The turnover of the continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 amounted to approximately HK$31,778,000, representing an
increase of approximately 81.2% compared to approximately HK$17,542,000 for
the year ended 31st December, 2006. There has been no turnover attributable to
the discontinued operations of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2007,
as compared to approximately HK$293,916,000 recorded in the year 2006.

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the continuing operations of the Group
contributed a gross profit of approximately HK$65,644,000 (2006: gross loss of
approximately HK$27,876,000). The gross loss of continuing operations in the year
2006 was mainly due to the provision by the Group of allowance of approximately
HK$40,840,000 for the properties held for sale as a result of the austerity control
in the PRC. According to a valuation carried out by an independent professional
valuer in respect of the properties held for sales, the fair value of the properties
has increased during the year, which is justified to write back the allowance of
HK$40,840,000 in the 2007. For the year ended 31st December, 2007, there was
no contribution from the discontinued operations, as compared with gross profit of
approximately HK$31,987,000 in the year 2006.

The Group has managed to improve the overall profitability and delivered positive
results for the year under review by reducing costs and concentration on businesses
of promising return. In the year 2007, the Group's consolidated net profit
was approximately HK$102,222,000, entirely contributed from the continuing
operations (2006: the net loss from continuing operations were approximately
HK$118,667,000 and net profit of HK4,069,000 from discontinued operations,
giving to net loss of approximately HK$114,598,000).

Excluding the effects of write-off of goodwill of HK$11,297,000 arising from the
acquisition of the remaining 51% equity interests of Twente Company Limited
during the year, the gain of approximately HK$1,984,000 on disposal of a
subsidiary and the recognition of share-based compensation expenses of fair value
of HK$5,598,000 upon granting 48,900,000 share options in February, 2007, the
total expenses of the Group during the year were greatly reduced, as a consequence
of the realignment of the operating strategies in respect of the property business in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Property Business

The major property projects currently invested in the PRC by the Group include
Shun Jing Yuan in Beijing, a high-ended residential apartment project, and Dawning
Tower in Shenzhen, property for industrial and commercial uses.

Located in Chaoyang District in Beijing, Shun Jing Yuan is an European-style
luxury residential apartment project with large unit design, targeting at high-end
customers with particular interest in luxury residential apartment projects. The
regulating and administering policies by the State over high-ended residential
projects have an impact on Shun Jing Yuan project. Under these unfavourable
conditions, the Group focused on the fundamental works of the current projects
and imposed strict requirements on the particulars and improved it continuously,
pending for the reversal of market conditions. Meanwhile, the Group also adjusted
its sales agents and strategies to save costs.

The Dawning Tower, located in Shenzhen, the PRC, continued to secure a high
occupancy rate and has realised an income of approximately HK$18,736,000 for
the Group in the year 2007, representing an increase of approximately 16.8% over
the year 2006.

The Group will continue to enhance the management quality of Dawning Tower
and maintain good cooperation with its customers to maintain the prestigious
status of Dawning Tower among commercial buildings nearby and to use its best
effort to maintain a high occupancy rate of the building. It is expected that the
building’s occupation rate will continue to maintain at a high level in the year 2008.
Dawning Tower has secured a steady future rental income. The Company, however,
will continue to increase its income and control the expenses in anticipation of
further improvement in the earnings and revenue from Dawning Tower.

In January, 2007, the Group acquired a further 51% equity interests in Twente
Company Limited, the ultimate holding company holding certain properties located
at levels 4 and 5 of Beijing East Gate Plaza in the PRC. After the acquisition, the
Group has increased its investment properties in Beijing by approximately 5,100
square metres, generating a rental income of approximately HK$5,512,000 to the
Group in the year 2007. The properties have maintained a high occupancy rate.

In March, 2007, the Group purchased certain units in Admiralty Centre, Tower 1,
Queensway, Hong Kong as investment property in anticipation of a steady rental
income. In view of the expected appreciation in the fair value of the property
exceeding the short-term target for the Group, the Group has entered into an
agreement to dispose of the property on 8th October, 2007, the completion of the
disposal is expected to take place on or before 29th February, 2008.

—BTLEEH
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Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Property Business (Continued)

In the second half of 2007, the Group acquired the whole floor on the 20th floor
of World-Wide House, Central, Hong Kong and contemplated to sell the property
after renovation. An interested purchaser has confirmed to buy a portion of the
property. On 13th November, 2007, a provisional agreement for sale and purchase
was signed between the Group and the purchaser.

In spite of the increased stringent administrative policies, the PRC property market
is constantly flourishing. Coupled with the improved national income in the PRC
and stable performance in the property market in Hong Kong, the Group will
continue investing and trading in the PRC and Hong Kong property market, should
suitable opportunities arise. However, a cautious approach will be adopted so as
to minimize relevant risks arising therefrom. Apart from the property market, the
Company will continue seeking for suitable investment opportunities in other areas
but with stable returns in the basis industries, i.e. projects characterized by stable
cash inflows and simple management mechanism.

Capital Market Investment and Financial Services

The Group has diversified its investment portfolio to accommodate more current
assets with higher liquidity, including securities and debt securities, in order to
enhance the return of current assets.

From the first to third quarter of 2007, the financial and capital markets in Hong
Kong as well as the PRC continued rallying. The Group achieved the profit of
approximately HK$28,679,000 from its capital market investments, increased by
approximately 26 times as compared to the year 2006. The financial services of the
Group maintained a modest operation, providing short to medium term loans to the
business associates and partners. In view of sufficient working capital in the current
period, as well as in the future, the foregoing lending activities contribute a higher
return to the Group than the bank deposits interest, the Group will also pay close
attention to credit risks control. At the same time, risk control policies are in place
including assessing the credit risks involved and/or obtaining valuable securities.

Manufacturing of High-tech Computers and Servers and Related Business
Jingke Information

Wuhan Jingke Information Industry Co., Ltd. (“Jingke Information”) is mainly
engaged in the manufacturing of quartz oscillators (semi-finished products) used
in the production of various electronic products, resonators (final products), SMD
and related devices. Sales revenue for the year ended 31st December, 2007 was
HK$26,491,000, representing a slight increase of approximately 13.6% over the
year 2006. Jingke Information barely broke even in year 2007.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Manufacturing of High-tech Computers and Servers and Related Business
(Continued)

Jingke Information (Continued)

An agreement was entered into between the Group and Jingke Information on 1st
March, 2004, pursuant to which the Group granted a non-revolving secured loan
up to RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,151,000). The loan
was secured by each of the shareholders of Jingke Information by charging their
respective equity interests in Jingke Information to the Group. In addition, Jingke
Information also owes to the Group an amount of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,547,000). The Group is endeavouring to recover the whole or
part of the outstanding receivables due from Jingke Information to the Group by
the proper procedures.

Yunnan Green-Land

On 21st March, 2007, the Company has disposed of its entire interests in Treasure
Land Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the only
asset of which is the holding of 11,187,456 shares in the share capital of Yunnan
Green-Land Biological and Science Company Limited (“Yunnan Green-Land”), at
a consideration of approximately RMB40,051,000. Yunnan Green-Land is mainly
engaged in the sale, design and project contracting of horticultural plants. Details
of the disposal were set out in the Company's circular dated 4th April, 2007.

Dawning — Discontinued operations

On 30th September, 2006, the Group completed the disposals of manufacturing of
high-tech computers and servers and the related business. Details of the disposals
were set out in the Company'’s circular dated 30th June, 2006. During the nine
months ended 30th September, 2006, turnover and net loss after taxation of
manufacturing of high-tech computers and servers and related business were
approximately HK$293,916,000 and HK$17,283,000 respectively.

—EELFFR
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Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group managed to maintain its liquidity at a healthy level, with the Group’s
cash and bank deposits totalling HK$228,138,000 as at 31st December, 2007
(31st December, 2006: approximately HK$218,262,000). The Group exercised
strict credit controls on its accounts receivables to ensure the adequacy of the
working capital. As at 31st December, 2007, accounts receivables of the Group
amounted to HK$1,194,000 (31st December, 2006: Nil). The current ratio as at
31st December, 2007 was 18.37 while that as at 31st December, 2006 was 22.42.
As at 31st December, 2007 and 31st December, 2006, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank loan. As at 31st December, 2007 and 31st December, 2006, the
Group's gearing ratio (on the basis of total borrowings divided by shareholders’
equity) was maintained at a level of zero.

Treasury Management

In respect of financial resources management, the Group continued diversification
of its investment portfolio to accommodate more current assets with higher
liquidity, including securities, in order to enhance the return of current assets.
The aggressive and yet prudent financial resources management policy would be
continued to maximize investments return within a reasonable risk level.

Share Consolidation

On 13th February, 2007, the consolidation of every 20 shares of HK$0.01 each
in the issued and unissued ordinary share capital of the Company into 1 share of
HK$0.20 each was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 12th February, 2007. Further details were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 15th January, 2007.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Subscription of new shares and use of proceeds

m

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 7th June, 2007, an
independent third party subscribed 110,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.62 per share.
After deducting the related expenses, the net proceeds from the issuance
of new shares were approximately HK$68,100,000. Further details of this
subscription of shares were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 7th June, 2007.

The net proceeds arising from the subscription of new shares were reserved
and to be invested in some other suitable investment opportunities to be
identified by the Company.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 5th July, 2007, an
independent third party subscribed 96,600,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.53 per share.
After deducting the related expenses, the net proceeds from the issuance
of new shares were approximately HK$51,100,000. Further details of this
subscription of shares were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 5th July, 2007.

The net proceeds arising from the subscription of new share were used
to pay to a wholly-owned subsidiary as shareholder’s loan for paying the
balance amount for acquisition of the properties on 20th floor of World-
Wide House, Central, Hong Kong and other related costs.

Issue of unlisted warrants

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into between the Company and a placing
agent on 8th October, 2007, the Company issued to two independent third parties
240,000,000 warrants in total, with each being allocated with 120,000,000
warrants, at an issue price of HK$0.015 per warrant in cash.

The first subscription price is HK$0.42 per share at which holder of warrant may
subscribe for the shares of the Company during the period from the first date of the
issue of the warrants to the expiry of the 24th month. And the second subscription
price is HK$0.45 per share at which holder of warrant may subscribe for the shares
of the Company during the period from the first date of 25th month from the issue
of the warrants to the expiry of the 36th month. Both subscription prices will be
subject to adjustment based on the prescribed formula as set out in the instrument
creating the warrants for the happening of normal adjustment events. Further
details of this issue of unlisted warrants were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 9th October, 2007.

—BTLEEH
Annual Report 2007
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Pledge of Assets

As of 31st December, 2007, the Group has not pledged any of its assets and bank
deposits to obtain general banking facilities or short term bank borrowings.

Employees’ Remuneration and Benefits

The Group (including Jingke Information) had about 300 employees including
managerial, executive and technical staffs and production labour in Hong Kong and
the PRC as at 31st December, 2007 (31st December, 2006: about 330). The level
of remuneration, the promotion and the magnitude of remuneration adjustment
are justified according to their job duties, working performance and professional
experience. All staff and executive directors in Hong Kong office have participated
in the mandatory provident fund scheme. Other employees’ benefits include the
granting of share options by the Board of the Group under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company.

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risk

All income and funds applied to the purchases of raw materials, spare parts and
equipment and the payments of salaries were dominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi; therefore, it was not necessary to use any financial instruments for
hedging purpose, and the Group's exposure to the fluctuation of the exchange
risk was minimal. During the year under review, the Group has not engaged in any
hedging activities. As of 31st December, 2007, cash in hand and bank balances
of the Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and
Renminbi.

Disposals and Acquisitions

On 23rd January, 2007, Assets Partners Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, completed the acquisition of 51% equity in and shareholder’s loan
in the sum of approximately HK$22,638,000 advanced by the vendor to Twente
Company Limited, which was an associate of the Group as at 31st December,
2006, at a consideration of HK$63,000,000. The consideration was satisfied by
the issuance of new shares of the Company. Further details were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 15th January, 2007.

In March, 2007, the Company completed its acquisition of 100% equity interests in
and the shareholder’s loan to Sharp World Investments Limited at a consideration of
HK$17,500,000 which was satisfied by issuance of the new shares of the Company.
Further details were set out in the Company’s circular dated 13th March, 2007.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Disposals and Acquisitions (Continued)

On 16th March, 2007, the Company entered into the sale and purchase
agreement to sell its 100% equity interests in Treasure Land Enterprises Limited
for approximately RMB40,051,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$40,051,000).
Further details were set out in the Company’s circular dated 4th April, 2007.

On 25th May, 2007, Stadium Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement to sell the properties
situated at Suites 04, 05, and 06 on 19th Floor, Harbour Centre, No. 25 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for HK$51,920,000. The disposal was completed on
20th August, 2007.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 5th July, 2007 entered into by the Company,
the Company agreed to purchase the entire interests in and the shareholder’s
loan of Glory Faith Holdings Limited (“Glory Faith”) at a total consideration of
HK$28,500,000. Further details were set out in the Company’s circular dated 20th
July, 2007.

Glory Faith has submitted a form of tender on 4th June, 2007 for the purchase of
a property situated at 20th Floor of World-Wide House, No. 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong (the “Property”) at a price of HK$155,000,000 and paid a
tender payment of HK$9,000,000 upon signing of the tender on 13th June, 2007
and has entered into a memorandum agreement and paid a further deposit of
HK$6,500,000 upon signing. The purchase of the Property was completed on 31st
August, 2007. Currently, the Property is classified as properties held for sale, and
necessary development works were done to increase the potential value of the
Property.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had not participated in any substantial
acquisition and disposal during the year under review.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31st December, 2007 and 31st
December, 2006.

—EELFFR
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chung Tak

Aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director and Chairman of the Board of the
Company in October 2003. He is also the executive director and president of Thing
On Group Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wong has been
working in investment and finance companies for more than twenty years and is the
executive director of several local investment and finance companies currently. Mr.
Wong has solid experience and obtained brilliant results in corporate development
strategies, corporate operation management, market and projects development. He
has established strong business connections and distribution network in the South
East Asia, and is especially strong in business development in the region.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in October 2003.
Mr. Tse is also the executive director of a local professional firm providing regulatory
compliance, corporate governance and corporate secretarial services to listed and
unlisted corporations. Mr. Tse is a member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. He is
also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tse has more than
fifteen years solid experience in regulatory compliance, corporate governance and
corporate secretarial matters of listed and unlisted companies. He is the company
secretary of three Hong Kong listed companies.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick

Aged 28, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in January
2004. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Economics from
Oxford Brookes University in the U.K. in the year 2001. He possesses several years
of experience in financial analysis. Mr. Wong is an executive director of a listed
company on The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc., being responsible for the audit
department of the company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Aged 65, has been a non-executive Director of the Company since July 1993.
Mr. Lee holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and has over 25
years' experience in the trading and investment fields in the PRC. Mr. Lee was
previously an executive director of Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited; the vice president
of telecommunication and investment division, of Hong Kong First Pacific Group
and an executive director of PRC business development of Lucent Technology
(China) Inc. Mr. Lee is currently holding senior positions in high-tech broadcasting
and telecommunication areas and is actively involved in China’s marketing and
investment activities.

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris

Aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
in September 2003. He is also a Certified Public Accountant (Practising), the senior
partner of Liu Leung Chan, Certified Public Accountants. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from an American university and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom.

Miss Chong Kally

Miss Chong was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company in November 2003. She is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member
of Association for Investment Management and Research. She graduated from the
University of Auckland with a Master in Engineering Management. She majored
in Electronic and Electrical Engineering in her undergraduate. Miss Chong also
pursued a Master in Business Administration in the Chinese University of Hong
Kong while working in Hong Kong. She has been working in the banking and
finance sector over ten years.

—EELFFR
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QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Leung Shui Yin, Steven

Aged 46, was appointed as qualified accountant of the Company with effect
from 21st December, 2006. Mr. Leung is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has abundant experience in financial management, treasury
management, internal control and corporate finance, and has been working in
listed companies for about 10 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella has been appointed as company secretary and
authorised representative of the Company with effect from 1st November, 2006.
Miss Chan is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries. She is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan
has over 10 years experience in handling listed company secretarial matters.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31st December, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries, the Group's associates and jointly controlled
entities are set out in notes 43, 19 and 20 to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2007 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 37.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

CLOSURE OR REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitled to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday,
15th April, 2008 (2008 AGM"), the register of members of the company will be
closed from Thursday, 10th April, 2008 to Monday, 14th April, 2008, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 9th
April, 2008.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year end date. The
net increase in fair value of HK$47,275,000 has been credited directly to the
consolidated income statement.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st December, 2007, the Company had no reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, except that under the laws of Bermuda,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$538,686,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares and
the Company’s contributed surplus account, in the amount of approximately
HK$588,178,000 may be distributed under certain circumstances.

—EELFFR
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chung Tak
Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris
Miss Chong Kally

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87, Messrs. Wong Ngo, Derick and Liu
Sing Piu, Chris will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming 2008 AGM.

The independent non-executive directors are not appointed for specific terms
but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2008 AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share Options” and “Substantial Shareholders”
below, as at 31st December, 2007, none of the directors or chief executives of the
Company or any of their associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30th May, 2002, a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The New Scheme replaced the share
option scheme adopted on 17th November, 2000 (the “Old Scheme”). After the
adoption of the New Scheme, no further options can be granted under the Old
Scheme. Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 32
to the financial statements.

Details of movements in the number of share options during the year are set out
below:

Eita
Old Scheme
BRERE
Number of share options
i
ZEELE i
Bhe -A-H ZEELE
TEE™ HATR =
SHENE B Bhie (=) (Bt (i) =t-A
HAAR) sk BRERS" 78R Exercise price Outstanding ERKN MRITHE
Name or Date of grant Exercise period of share at 1st January, Lapsed Outstanding
category of of share of share options** 2007 during  at 31st December,
participants Note options* options (Note (i)) (Note (ii)) the year 2007
E£3
Director
Byt @ “NALFLALE “MEELATRRE 7.60 45,000 (45,000) * -
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 7.7.1997 ZZTHECATIA (Bits (i)
15.7.1997 to 14.7.2007 (Note (ii)
ES
Former director
R (b) “TT-£ZANA ZET-§=f-1-HZ 3.89 1,500,000 (1,500,000) * -
Mr. Chen Chao 9.3.2001 “E-BET-A4KA (FFEE (i)
21.3.2001 10 16.11.2010 (Note (ii)
1,545,000 (1,545,000) -
—ZTLFEEFR

Annual Report 2007




EZEWSE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

IR 2 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Bxta (&)
Old Scheme (Continued)

BREHA
Number of share options
IS
Bhe IS ZEELE
THE” —BBtE +=A
SEENS jir B (HEE() -B-H =t-A
el ik BRERS" TEHE Exercise price EAR{TE FREM EAR{TE
Name or Date of grant Exercise period of share Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
category of of share of share options**  at 1st January, during  at 31st December,
participants Note options* options (Note (i)) 2007 the year 2007
EftfEg “E2-F=ANA —ET F=A-tRE 3.89 450,000 (450,000)# -
Other employees 9.3.2001 ZE-TEF-ATRA (O i)
CE 20.3.2001 10 16112010 (Note (i)
In aggregate ZET-EZANA ‘%‘ﬁf F=fZt-HZ 3.89 3,000,000 (3,000,000 ¢ -
9.3.2001 “E-RET-ATRA (GEI0)
21.3.2001t0 16.11.2010 (Note (ii))
ZET-EZANA ‘%‘ﬁf F=AZtZHZE 3.89 75,000 - 75,000
9.3.2001 “E-RET-ATRA (FFFEE (i)
22.3.2001t0 16.11.2010 (Note (ii)
ZTT-E+ACf=H ‘§§ FtA-HZE 3.89 15,203 (15,203) % -
23.7.2001 “ERLERAZTH (BEE (i)
1.7.2002 t0 30.6.2007 (Note (ii))
“TT-E)\Af=H ‘§§ FtA-HZE 3.89 37,500 (37,500) * -
13.8.2001 “ERLERAZTH (BEE (i)
1.7.2002 t0 30.6.2007 (Note (ii))
3,577,703 (3,502,703) 75,000
5,122,703 (5,047,703) 75,000
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BIRE = SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
et
New Scheme
BREE
Number of share options
e 3 e 3
SHEENS it BRRE -A-A EREE/  tZA=T-H
SRR BRERS" fiyidl BRIRE HRTHE (%3 HRAT
Name or Date of grant Exercise period TH#E™  Outstanding Granted/ Outstanding
category of of share of share Exercise price at st January,  Lapsed during  at 31st December,
participants options* options of share options** 2007 the year 2007
%
Directors
TRERE ZEELF-ATCA “ETLF-A-T-AZ 0.72 - 7,100,000 7,100,000
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12.2.2007 ZZ-ZFRAZTNA
21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012
ARBEE ZEELF-ATCA “ETLF-A-t-AZ 0.72 - 7,100,000 7,100,000
Mr. Tse Kam Fai 12.2.2007 “ET-—FRA-tHA
21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012
IXfEE ZEELF-ATCA “ETLF-A-t-AZ 0.72 - 6,900,000 6,900,000
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 12.2.2007 ZZ-ZFRAZTNA
21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012
sxflat ZEELF-ATCA “ETLF-A-t-AZ 0.72 - 6,900,000 6,900,000
Miss Chong Kally 12.2.2007 ZZ-ZFRAZTNA
21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012
- 28,000,000 28,000,000
HitfEE
Other employees
ait ZER=FTATEA ZER=ET-AZTNEE 1508 750,000 - 750,000
In aggregate 14.10.2003 ZEE\FT-AZ1RA (iEE0)] (BissE i)
28.11.2003 t0 26.11.2008 (Note (i) (Note (ii))
“ZZtF-RTCH “ET5-A-t-H%E 072 - 13,800,000 13,800,000
12.2.2007 —E-—FRA=1+NA
21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012
750,000 13,800,000 14,550,000
RERSEE ZEELF-ATCA “ETLF-A-T-AZ 0.72 - 7,100,000 7,100,000
Eligible Participant 12.2.2007 ZZ-ZFRAZTNA
21.02.2007 t0 29.05.2012
750,000 48,900,000 49,650,000
—EEBLFER
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(ii)

* %k

%

The share options outstanding at 1st January, 2007 granted to Mr. Lee Kuo Ching,
Stewart were in accordance with the general mandate granted by the shareholders to
the directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 10th June, 1997.

Mr. Chen Chao resigned as non-executive director of the Company in 17th July, 2006
and acted as the senior consultant of the Company up to 31st December, 2006.

Upon the share consolidation of every 20 shares of HK$0.01 each into 1 share of
HK$0.20 each became effective on 13th February, 2007, the exercise prices of
HK$0.3800, HK$0.1945 and HK$0.0754 per share were adjusted to HK$7.60, HK$3.89
and HK$1.508 per share respectively.

Upon the share consolidation became effective on 13th February, 2007, the
outstanding options were consolidated on the basis of 20 share options into 1 share
option.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

These share options were lapsed three months after the grantees ceased to be eligible
participant of the Group.

These options were lapsed due to the expiry of the option period.

As at 31st December, 2007, the number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remaining outstanding under the share option schemes was
49,725,000 shares, representing 4.01% of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Options” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Company’s directors or chief executives to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at

31st December, 2007, the register of substantial shareholders maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief executives, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued
share capital of the Company:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each

gt

Number of shares held
HERfT
R EY
Mz BEER BiEEs a% BAL
Percentage in
total number
RREE Name of shareholder Note Direct interest Indirect interest Total of issued shares
Thing On Group Limited Thing On Group Limited 1 286,997,589 - 286,997,589 23.15%
THEss Mr. Wong Chung Tak 1 7,100,000 293,897,589 300,997,589 24.28%
REANL Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny 1 6,900,000 294,097,589 300,997,589 24.28%
Growth Time Holdings Limited ( [GTHL] ) Growth Time Holdings Limited (* GTHL") 2 120,000,000 - 120,000,000 9.68%
Ideal China International Ltd. ( [ICIL) ) deal China International Ltd. (“ICIL") 3 120,000,000 - 120,000,000 9.68%

Wit -

(M

Thing On Group Limited 2 & 2B 81T A H £
sk ((EhE) BEaEA - TX4ERThing
On Group Limited2&EE - REF LT ([RL
THAREFREZERM - Bt FAERRLLH
#2575 (@) Thing On Group Limited 8 Z &) +
(D) EFEHE 2 BRER (R ZLTiE 2 BikE
PHEAER o

BEARNAR_ZTLFE+A-+-BHNTZ
120,000,00017 9k EF T R EFE - GTHLHE B
120,000,000 % T £ B3 2 iz - HE LB H R
BEZHRTHEEANRBEERTASMGZ
=758 A B A E IR A 0.42 8 7130 0.45 %
TL(HERE)RE K - GTHLZ 2B TR
7K+ B Ching Elizabeth Sia Z+([Chingz+ 1) &
A o ChingZ THE LR AR GTHLIF A 2%
ETERDEEER -

BEARRR_ZZ+F+A+ BT
2.120,000,0007 3F T R IEE - ICILES
120,000,000 R $TAE MR 1D 2 # 2 - B UIL B H R
BRIEFR FIHEARNRREEZRTASMAGBZ
=78 A B AR R 0.42 87080 0.45 7%
TT(HEAE)RE K - ICILZ2EEEITRA
£ Choa Lily NgoZ + ([ChoaZ &= |) B&i A -
Choa Z AW R ANICILFEZSTER D
BiEE o

Notes:

The entire issued share capital of Thing On Group Limited is beneficially owned by Mr.
Wong Chung Tak (“Mr. Wong"). Mr. Wong is a director of Thing On Group Limited.
Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny (“Ms. Ng”) is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Therefore, both Mr.
Wong and Ms. Ng are deemed to be interested in (a) the shares held by Thing On Group
Limited, (b) the share options held by Mr. Wong and (c) the share options held by Ms.
Ng.

GTHL was interested in derivative of 120,000,000 shares pursuant to the 120,000,000
unlisted warrants issued by the Company on 22nd October, 2007, whereby each
warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for one share at HK$0.42 or HK$0.45,
whichever is applicable, at any time during a period of 36 months commencing from
the date of issue of the warrants. The entire issued share capital of GTHL is beneficially
owned by Ms. Ching Elizabeth Sia (“Ms. Ching”). Ms. Ching is therefore deemed to
have interests in these derivatives held by GTHL.

ICIL was interested in derivative of 120,000,000 shares pursuant to the 120,000,000
unlisted warrants issued by the Company on 22nd October, 2007, whereby each
warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for one share at HK$0.42 or HK$0.45,
whichever is applicable, at any time during a period of 36 months commencing from the
date of issue of the warrants. The entire issued share capital of ICIL is beneficially owned
by Ms. Choa Lily Ngo (“Ms. Choa"). Ms. Choa is therefore deemed to have interests in
these derivatives held by ICIL.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31st December, 2007.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 1st March, 2004, the Group entered into a loan agreement with B2 &EHE &
E B MR A F Wuhan Jingke Information Industry Co., Ltd. (“Jingke information”),
a jointly controlled entity of the Group, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to grant a non-revolving secured loan of up to RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,151,000) to Jingke Information. The loan carried interest
at HSBC prime rate. The effective interest rate ranged from 7.75% to 8% in year
2006. The loan is secured by each of the shareholders of Jingke Information by
charging their respective equity interests in Jingke Information to the Group. The
loan principal and interest have expired on 31st December, 2005. Allowance for the
whole amount was made in year 2006.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 60.4% of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately 48.6 % of the
Group's total purchases.

During the year, the Group's sales to the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 21.9% of the Group's total turnover and sales to the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 5.0% of the Group's total
sales.

None of the directors of the Company, their associates, nor any shareholder which
to the best knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY?'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31st December, 2007.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date are set out in
note 40 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditors of the Company with effect from
26th July, 2007 and Grant Thornton was appointed as auditors of the Company
at a special general meeting of the Company held on 27th August, 2007 to fill
the vacancy arising from the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Save as
aforesaid, there were no changes in auditors during the past three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs.
Grant Thornton as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

WONG CHUNG TAK
Chairman

Hong Kong
28th February, 2008
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The Company is committed to maintaining corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place governance
practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of disclosure,
transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns
to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance practices. The
Company has also complied with all the code provisions under the CG Code except
for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 which are explained in the
following relevant paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct regarding director’s securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all directors, all
directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31st December, 2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company, as well as
the supervision of the business, approval of strategic plans and monitoring the
Company's performance.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings that are required for
significant and important issues, and for statutory purposes. Appropriate and
sufficient information is provided to Board members in a timely manner to keep
them abreast of the Group’s latest developments and thus can assist them in
discharging their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings
and draft of which will be circulated to all directors for their review, comments and
approval after the meetings. The minutes books are kept by the Company Secretary
and will be opened for inspection by the directors upon request. All directors have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the
Board for ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws and
regulations are complied with.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be divided. The roles and functions of the chief executive
officer have been performed by the Board of the Company and the directors
believed that such arrangement enables different talents and expertise of the
directors to be best utilized to the benefits of the Group.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. Non-executive directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but they are subject to the
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with specific terms of
reference, which is responsible for arranging new appointment of directors and
senior executives of the Company, and for reviewing the succession plan for
executive directors and senior executives of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of two executive directors, one non-executive director
and three independent non-executive directors:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wong Chung Tak
Mr. Tse Kam Fai

Non-executive director:
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris

Miss Chong Kally

To the best knowledge of the Company, Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick, a non-executive
director of the Company, is the son of the elder brother of Mr. Wong Chung
Tak, the Chairman. Save as aforesaid, there is no financial, business and family
relationship among members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise their
independent judgment. The biographies of the directors are set out in pages 12 and
13 of the annual report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive directors, of whom Mr. Liu Sing Piu,
Chris, is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United
Kingdom. He has many years of experience in auditing and taxation, and providing
audit and consultant services for companies in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart, has been serving the Board for more than 14 years.
Mr. Lee is a man of integrity and is experienced in management and development
of business in the PRC. During the services to the Board in the past years, he
contributed to the Board and the Company valuable advice on diverse aspects.

Miss Chong Kally is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of Association
for Investment Management and Research. She has been working in the banking
finance sector for over 10 years.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, 11 Board meetings were held.
All directors are given an opportunity to include any matter in the agenda for
regular Board meetings and are given sufficient time to review the documents and
information to be discussed in Board meeting in advance.

HEEBRE
EEEB Name of director Number of meetings attended
HITEE - Executive directors:
FHREAE(FE) Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Chairman) 11/11
IR E L Mr. Tse Kam Fai 11/11
HBITEE - Non-executive director:
TR E Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 11/11
HUHBTESE - Independent non-executive directors:
FRESESLE Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 10/11
Bk E Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris 11/11
HEME Miss Chong Kally 10/11

YR ERERAAE
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board, namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Operational
Committee, to oversee different aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board'’s responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee
consists of all the independent non-executive directors.

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the members of the Audit Committee
consisted of:

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart
Miss Chong Kally

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee with
reference to standards stipulated in code provisions. The major roles and functions
of the Audit Committee are as follows:

- to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors, and any issue in relation to the resignation or dismissal of such
auditors;

- to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee should discuss with the auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

- to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company and the
Company'’s annual report and accounts and interim reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them. In this regard, in
reviewing the Company’s annual report and accounts and half-year reports
before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on any significant
adjustments resulting from the audit; the going concern assumptions and
any qualifications; compliance with accounting standards and compliance
with the Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

—BTLEEH
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

- to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

- to discuss with the management the system of internal control and ensure
that management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system;

- to consider any findings or major investigations of internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or its own initiative and management response;

- where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function
is adequately resources and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

- to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

- to review the external auditors’ management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditors to management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response; and

- to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues raised in
the external auditors’ management letter.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings in 2007. Each committee meeting has
supplied with the necessary financial information of the Group for members to
consider, review and access significant issues arising from the work conducted.

The following table shows the attendance of members at meetings of the Audit
Committee meeting during the year:

HEEBRE
EEEB Name of directors Number of meetings attended
BEEREE Liu Sing Piu, Chris 3/3
FRSESEE Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 3/3
HE M)A Chong Kally 3/3

YR ERERAAE
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the following
work:

- reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31st December, 2006 and the
interim results for the six months ended 30th June, 2007;

- discussed with the management of the Company over the completeness,
fairness and adequacy of accounting standards and policies of the Group in
the preparation of the 2007 interim and annual financial statements;

- reviewed and discussed with the external auditors over the financial
reporting of the Company;

- recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of the re-
appointment of the auditors;

- appointed external auditors to audit and review the Group's internal control
procedures; and

- reviewed the internal control procedures of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of one executive or non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors, and an independent non-executive
director should take up the role of chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
During the year, the members of the Remuneration Committee were:

Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chung Tak

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Miss Chong Kally
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Group’s Remuneration Committee are, but not
limited to, as follows:

- to make recommendation to the Board on matters relating to the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

- to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration;

- to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

- to review and approve the compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management in connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is
otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that such arrangements
are determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration; and

- to form a view in respect of service contracts that require shareholders’
approval and advise shareholders (other than shareholders who are Directors
with a material interest in the service contracts and their associates) as to
whether the terms are fair and reasonable, to advise whether such contracts
are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, and
advise shareholders on how to vote.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, 1 meeting was held with all members
attended the meeting to approve the remuneration of the directions of the
Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee consists of one executive or non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors, and an executive director should
take up the role of chairman of the Nomination Committee. During the year, the
members of the Nomination Committee were:

Mr. Wong Chung Tak (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Sing Piu, Chris

Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart

Miss Chong Kally

The major roles and functions of the Group’s Nomination Committee are, but not
limited to, as follows:

- to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed change;

- to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on relevant issues relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and president.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to assess the independence of the independent non-executive directors
and the directors to be re-elected at the 2007 annual general meeting of the
Company before put forth for discussion and approval by the Board, and also
reviewed the composition of the Board.

OPERATIONAL COMMITTEE

The Operational Committee of the Company was established on 18th March, 2005,
and the quorum of the Committee consists of at least two executive directors and
one independent non-executive director.

The Operational Committee meets on ad hoc basis to exercise the powers,
authorities and discretions of the Board in accordance with the written terms of
reference.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditors of the Company, Messrs. Grant
Thornton, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 35 and 36.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any matters uncertainly
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the external auditors of the Group
provided the audit services to the Group at a fee of HK$600,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a proper and effective system
of internal control of the Group. The internal control system includes safeguard of
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
management the implementation of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management function without a defined framework. During the
year ended 31st December, 2007, the Board has conducted a review of the system
of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the system. The
Board shall conduct such review at least once annually.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company’s annual general meeting is a valuable forum for the
Board to communicate directly with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
as well as the chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees
together with the external auditors are present to answer shareholders’ questions.
The annual report together with annual general meeting circular are distributed
to all the shareholders at least 21 days before the annual general meeting. It
sets out the procedures for demanding and conducting a poll and other relevant
information of proposed resolutions.

VOTING BY POLL

The Company informs the shareholders in a circular convening a general meeting
of the procedures for voting by poll and the rights of shareholders to demand a
poll to ensure compliance with the requirements on the poll voting procedures. In
accordance with Bye-laws 66 and 67 of the Company, at any general meeting a
resolution put to voting shall be decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is (before
or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any
demand for a poll) demanded by:

1. the chairman of the meeting; or

2. by at least three shareholders present in person or in the case of a member
being a corporation by its duly authorised representative or by proxy for the
time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

3. by a shareholder or shareholders present in person or in the case of a
member being a corporation by its duly authorised representative or by proxy
and representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all
members having the right to vote at the meeting; or

4. by a shareholder or shareholders present in person or in the case of a
member being a corporation by its duly authorised representative or by proxy
and holding shares in the Company conferring a right to vote at the meeting
being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less
than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all shares conferring that right;
or

5. if required by the rules of the Designated Stock Exchange, by any Director or
Directors who, individually or collectively, hold proxies in respect of shares,
representing five per cent. (5%) or more of the total voting rights at such
meeting.
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VOTING BY POLL (Continued)

A demand by a person as proxy for a member or in the case of a member being a
corporation by its duly authorised representative shall be deemed to be the same as
a demand by a member.

The Company should count all proxy votes and, except where a poll is required
by the chairman of a meeting should indicate to the meeting the level of proxies
lodged on each resolution, and the balance for and against the resolution, after it
has been dealt with on a show of hands. The Company should ensure that votes
cast are properly counted and recorded.

The chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the meeting ensure
that an explanation is provided of:

1. the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders before putting a
resolution to the vote on a show of hands; and

2. the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answer any questions
from shareholders whenever voting by way of a poll is required.
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To the members of Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
FYIBHEIZ R B R AR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen High-Tech
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 37 to 145, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December, 2007, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

—BTLEEH
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December, 2007 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

28th February, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE-_FTTLF+=H=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

—EELF ZETRF
2007 2006
BisE FExT FHT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RHEREER Continuing operations
'ON Revenue 5 31,778 17,542
SHE AR AR A Cost of sales and services (6,974) (4,578)
BEFEmE Write back of provision/(Allowance) for
B () properties held for sale 40,840 (40,840)
Al (B518) B58 Gross profit/(loss) 65,644 (27,876)
BRATHESBERGLRZ Fair value gains on financial assets at
MIBEE 2 A THERE fair value through profit or loss 28,679 1,062
H bWz Other income 18,314 6,552
SHE R A Selling and distribution costs (941) (9,495)
TR Administrative expenses (27,797) (31,822)
HEMB ARz (EiE) Gain/(Loss) on disposals of subsidiaries 1,984 (579)
RALE —REE AR 2 W Gain on deemed disposal of an associate - 106
S E R RIREME Revaluation gain on transfer of leasehold
2 EffE properties to investment properties 15 - 8,000
REYMFEN T ERE Gain in fair value of investment properties 15 47,275 1,500
EHE 2 Write-off of goodwill 21 (11,297) -
N e Share of results of associates 19 - (17,910)
NI E Share of results of joint ventures 20 - (13,608)
HAnp Other expenses 7 - (33,910)
BT AN Finance costs 8 - =
MRETS AN, (BE8) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 10 121,861 (117,980)
i8> Income tax expense 12 (19,639) (687)
BEREER 2 FERF Profit/(Loss) for the year from
(E8) continuing operations 102,222 (118,667)
BRIEER Discontinued operations
BRI EE 2 F R m A Profit for the year from discontinued operations 9 - 4,069
FEREA(EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 102,222 (114,598)
HABT - Attributable to:
RATE=FEEA Equity holders of the Company 102,222 (114,598)
AL gl
HK cents HK cents
(&51)
(restated)
RARERFE AEIGFER Earnings/(Loss) per share from continuing and
BRI EET 2 B discontinued operations attributable to
&7/ (&) the equity holders of the Company 14
—HAR — Basic 9.13 (14.15)
—#58 — Diluted 9.10 TN N/A
RABERTEABIEFELCEET  Earnings/(Loss) per share from continuing operations
ZERER, (BE) attributable to the equity holders of the Company 14
— &K — Basic 9.13 (14.65)
—#E — Diluted 9.10 TNEF N/A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-FZL4F+— f=+—H As at 31st December, 2007

—EELF ZETRF
2007 2006
Bt 5 FExT FHIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREEE Non-current assets
BEYE Investment properties 15 245,000 150,000
M - BB K& Property, plant and equipment 16 2,016 1,894
TR ERIE Prepaid lease payments 17 3,800 3,900
NI Interests in associates 19 - 33,187
REERRZ RS Interests in joint ventures 20 - -
FEWE R Loan receivable 27 3,000 =
BRHHRE Investments in debt securities 22 - 15,000
253,816 203,981
RENEE Current assets
FEME Properties held for sale 23 479,840 264,000
FEUIER R Trade receivables 24 1,194 =
HAbEWGRIE - BRRIERIES Other receivables, prepayments and deposits 24 1,818 2,170
o E T A Rl FEUR Balance of consideration receivable from
REZ & disposals of subsidiaries 26,39(b) - 28,500
TR ERIE Prepaid lease payments 17 100 100
JEURES N B FRIE Amounts due from associates 19 - 21,816
W —FHE& & R EIRIE Amounts due from a joint venture 20 - =
FEMEK Loan receivables 27 110,891 1,201
BERBHHIRE Investments in debt securities 22 15,956 =
AIHSHERE Available-for-sale investment 28 - 40,000
BATEEBERCR Financial assets held at fair value through
mFEzEmEE profit and loss 29 12,187 9,995
RITRER - TR S Bank balances, deposits and cash 25 228,138 218,262
850,124 586,044
PIERFEZREMSE Investment properties classified as held for sale 15 52,248 =
902,372 586,044
ENEE Current liabilities
HAbERFIE - Other payables, deposits received and
Bz METER accrued charges 30 42,690 23,638
FERTEIIE Taxation payables 6,432 2,499
49,122 26,137
REBEEFE Net current assets 853,250 559,907
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R-ZFZELF+— F=+—H As at 31st December, 2007

—EZtHF ZETRF
2007 2006
FitEE FExT FAxT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HEERABARSE Total assets less current liabilities 1,107,066 763,888
ERBER Non-current liabilities
EEBIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 34 15,375 1,226
EEFE Net assets 1,091,691 762,662
= EQUITY
RATERFEA Equity attributable to the equity holders
FE(L = of the Company
&N Share capital 31 247,944 172,233
] Reserves 33 843,747 590,429
e 4A%E Total equity 1,091,691 762,662
FREfE HERE
Wong Chung Tak Tse Kam Fai
E2 E2
Director Director

e aaasmsd 39
Annual Report 2007




BEAER

BALANCE SHEET

R-FZL4F+— f=+—H As at 31st December, 2007

—EELF —ETREF
2007 2006
Ff5E FHT FH&T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - BB K& Property, plant and equipment 16 472 590
A SEPNGIP Interests in subsidiaries 18 15,013 6,814
REFE QAR 2 Interests in an associate 19 - =
15,485 7,404
RENEE Current assets
H bl GRIE Other receivables 386 648
PGB B A RIERIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 18 995,440 704,618
BATEERBSCERMEES Financial assets held at fair value
L EREE through profit and loss 29 12,187 =
RITRER - TR S Bank balances, deposits and cash 25 39,692 111,934
1,047,705 817,200
PiEI=R Current liabilities
HAbERFIE - Other payables, deposits received
Blize RETE A and accrued charges 1,630 4,435
RUIEBA RZIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 18 50,293 27,134
FERTEIIE Taxation payables 3 1
51,926 31,570
RENVEEFE Net current assets 995,779 785,630
FEE Net assets 1,011,264 793,034
fexs EQUITY
(%N Share capital 31 247,944 172,233
# Reserves 33 763,320 620,801
e E%E Total equity 1,011,264 793,034
THEE B iFiy
Wong Chung Tak Tse Kam Fai
EE2 E
Director Director

RYIBHRIZER AR F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B E T F+4F 1= H="1—HIFFJZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007
U E
RE RGGE #aRs BHER ENRE BREE ZEPE 4B
Property
Share Share Confributed  revaluation  Tranlation ~ Statutory Accumulated
aptd premmsuls reseneresene resenefund [osses Total
Tin i TEn TEm TRt TR TR T
HKF000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
RZETnE-F-B At 1st January, 2006 13533 34078 588,178 - 3102 54 (312,13) 781973
HENEERTRENRR Revalation gan onleasehold propertes upon
LEfIE (o) fransferto investment properties note 15 - - B - - -3
HENFEATRENRR Deferted tax ity rsing on revaluaton of ezsehold
Bt RERERE propertes upon tansfr o investment propertes - - - - - -
FRENRRRET ELER Bichange difeence arisng on translation offoreign operatons - - - - 4T - -8
FERENTRE Shares o resenves of asocites - - - - 14m - -
Bty N Net income recognisd directy n equity - - ¥/ 1) - L
FHER Loss for the year - - - - - - (1145%)  (1145%8)
ERENERAREE Tota recognised income and expense for the year - - ¥/ 1) - (114598 (101,690)
HENBATRERRE Reservesreleased upon disposas of subsidaries - - - -1 B 308 (1299
REHMR Placing ofnew shares B0 5740 - - - - - %10
BREfRAEL AR xpenses incured n connection with issue o new shres - - - - - -
B Teansfer - - - - - 1m0 -
REETNETZA=1-A At 315t December, 2006 33 40905 58178 L8 1987 31080 (402 762862
—TTLEFR
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HZE—FT 4 F+— H=+—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007

I Tk HE
Be REGE 4425 EMHBR EXBR BREGE BIBE REEC ZREE 4
Property
Share  Share Contributed revaluation Translation Share option ~ Warrant  Statutory Accumulated
capital  premium  surplus  reseve  reseve  reserve reserve reserve fund losses Total
Thn TEr TR TEn Thr T TEr TE TR THr
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
HN_EEtE--A At 1st January, 2007 72233 409052 588,178 218 197 - - 3108 (44620 762662
it Subscption of new shares H30 7078 - - - - - - - 1193%
Bk Isuance of new s UM 515 - - - - - - - B
ERREIRREE R Bxpenses incured n connecton
with subscription of new shares - 3 - - - - - - - (31
ARENRRE RN AR Bichange diference arsng on
translaton of foreign operations - - - -3 - - - - W3
HERENERER Release upon disosdls of
Investment properties - - - - - - - 218 -
HEHBATRER Release upon dlsposals ofsubsiciaries - - - - 1) - S QYY) 29 (19)
RilgiE Grant of she options - - - - -5 - - -5
W Lt lsuance of unlisted warrants - - - - - - 360 - - 3600
BREIRERNEL AR Bxpenses incured n connecton
with issuance of warrants - - - - - - (36) - - (30)
EERRTIRER R RF LR Net profitfor the year and tol
recognised income and
expense for he year - - - - - - - - 0me 10m
HZZBLEZR=1-R At 315t December, 2007 UTOM  538686* 588,178 - U8 5508 3564 189 (316,755)* 1,091,691

* ZERBREENR

BERBRZERHE *

843,747,000 T (ZFZ /4 : 590,429,000 %

V)

RYIBHRIZER AR F

Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$843,747,000 (2006:

HK$590,429,000) in the consolidated balance sheet.
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R -_TZTLF+=H=1+—HI-FZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

—EELF ZETRF
2007 2006
Fi&E FET FHBT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REXEBEEZRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
TSR AR R, (E58) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 121,861 (112,585)
ERATERE : Adjustments for:
IR E AR EE Share of results of associates - 17,910
BREE RRIFEE Share of results of joint ventures - 13,608
FERAX Interest expense - 317
2 A Interest income 10 (15,448) (6,897)
e Depreciation 10 1,378 3,459
TBTH & SRR 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 10 100 100
HEMFEEBREREAYEY Revaluation gain on transfer of leasehold

ERRylE properties to investment properties - (8,000)
KB MERFEE N Increase in fair value of investment properties (47,275) (1,500)
HEME - BE KxE2EE Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 10 - 43
S T RH B I R AR TS RS e Gain on disposals of high-tech computers and

MARRAEER 2 Was servers manufacturing and related business 39 - (21,352)
HERTBAR (a) &g (Gain)/Loss on disposals of subsidiaries 39 (1,984) 579
RAHE — K& A R Gain on deemed disposal of an associate - (106)
WM B A Bz W Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries 10 (723) -
B —RE &R EIFHIE (Reversal of impairment loss on)/Allowance for

2 CR{EEIBRE) amounts due from a joint venture 10 (262) 11,306
BT AERRBERZERE Allowance for loans to a joint venture 7 - 16,751
Al E I B R EEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments 7 - 5,853
FEYE 2 (EEERE) L (Write back of provision)/Allowance for

properties held for sale 10 (40,840) 40,840
RERERE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 10 - 8,575
LARR A7 A= 2 5 Share-based payments 10 5,598 =
FEEE Allowance for inventories 10 - 14,246
[EEcEiE Write-off of goodwill 10 11,297 -
RtEBESFHRI 28 Operating cash flows before movements

HEme in working capital 33,702 (16,853)
FEEZEIE M Increase in properties held for sale - (6,878)
FERD Decrease in inventories - 20,880
FEMBRFOR D (4540) Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables 75 (81,429)
HAbEIGRIE « FENFRIB Decrease in other receivables,

Riz&md prepayments and deposits 8,121 7,023
FEMWER (3E0) (Increase) in loan receivables (97,824) =
BRATESEBERTENFEZ (Increase) in financial assets held at fair

SELEE (35) value through profit and loss (2,192) (9,787)
FESBRFOR A Decrease in trade payables - (9,059)
HiEARIE  BEdiRe Rk (Increase)/Decrease in other payables,

FERTE A (1), deposits received and accrued charges (18,887) 13,629
CEEE(BEEBA)BR: Cash (used in) operations (77,005) (82,474)
BEEE Income tax paid (1,176) (1,441)
RS (BEERH)BEELFE Net cash (used in) operating activities (78,181) (83,915)

—ERLEER
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

R —FTZT+F+=H=+—HI-FZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

—EELHF ZTTRF
2007 2006
BisE FHET FAT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEXEBEEZEERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEUFILE Interest received 11,196 5,756
BEMZE  BFE&& Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,402) (2,486)
HEmE f%& S Proceeds from disposals of property,
FTfSkT plant and equipment - 1,993
H:'%WE’D\ AR B AT Disposals of subsidiaries and discontinued
BATHE 2BRE R operations, net of cash and
ReFHE cash equivalents disposed of 39(a) 40,051 53,595
WihE— R Hf B A A Acquisition of subsidiary 38(a)(i) 7,508 =
BEFEE  RALESRS Purchase of net assets, net of cash acquired 38(a)iii) (28,500) =
HEWE B A Settlement of amount payable for acquisition of
ZFERIFIE an investment property 38(a)(ii) (145,413) =
N a3 Repayments from associates - 900
—KEERAZER Repayments from a joint venture 262 1,000
BYF—REERRIZBK Advances to a joint venture - (8,140)
BY—REERFRZER Loans to a related company (11,009) (1,201)
WHE BB HFIE Acquisition of investments in debt securities - (10,000)
HEREMSE Disposals of investment properties 51,920 =
HH &S BB R FTIGRIE Amounts received from disposals of subsidiaries 28,500 =
REEK(BBR) AR 2BEFE Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (46,887) 41,417
MEXBEECZEHERE Cash flows from financing activities
REE/ TSR TS5 A Proceeds from subscription/placing of new shares 119,398 86,100
ARSI MESE Expenses incurred in connection with
ZHAX placing of new shares (31) (2,426)
MBRITER Bank loans raised - 50,301
BERFE Interest paid - (317)
BITRRMEE Issuance of warrants 3,600 =
BITRRIEE Expenses incurred in connection with issuance of
Rz HAE warrants (36) =
MEFBHER 2B S FHE Net cash generated from financing activities 122,931 133,658
ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@ Net (decrease)/increase in
) AL hFER cash and cash equivalents (2,137) 91,160
FOzHekBReEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 218,262 122,693
SNERE R BB 2 & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 12,013 4,409
FR2RERRELEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 228,138 218,262
ReRBEEEHRDIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
RITEBRER S Bank balances and cash 165,575 73,686
REIHATE=[@EA Time deposits with original maturity
ZEHIER of less than three months 62,563 144,576
228,138 218,262

RYIBHRIERER AR
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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1.

+4F+=H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK").

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the financial statements.
The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as the” Group” hereinafter.
The Group is principally engaged in property investment, development
and trading, securities investment and securities trading, and provision
of financial services. The business of manufacture and sales of high-tech
computers and servers (the “Discontinued operations”) had been disposed
of in September 2006, details of which are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The financial statements on pages 37 to 145 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
which collective term included all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”). The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing
Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2007 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 28th February, 2008.

—ETLEFH
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RYIBHRIZER AR F
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

From 1st January, 2007, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the
following new standards, amendment and interpretations, issued by
the HKICPA, which are relevant and effective for the Group's financial
statements beginning on 1st January, 2007:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital

Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is required.

2.1  HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital Disclosures

In accordance with the HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital Disclosures,
the Group now reports on its capital management objectives, policies
and procedures in each annual financial report. The new disclosures
that become necessary due to this change in HKAS 1 are set out in
note 42 to the financial statements.
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2.

+F+=H=+—HIFFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

2.2

2.3

HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures is mandatory for
reporting periods beginning on 1st January, 2007 or later. The new
standard replaces and amends the disclosure requirements previously
set out in HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosures
and has been adopted by the Group in its consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2007. All disclosures
relating to financial instruments including all comparative information
have been updated to reflect the new requirements. In particular, the
Group's financial statements now feature:

o a sensitivity analysis, to explain the Group’s market risk
exposure in regards to its financial instruments, and

o a maturity analysis that shows the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities,

each as at the balance sheet date. The first-time application of HKFRS
7, however, has not resulted in any prior-period adjustments of cash-
flows, net income or balance sheet line items.

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company
is currently assessing the impact of these HKFRSs but are not yet in a
position to state whether they would have material financial impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

“EELFER
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Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

2.3 HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised)  Presentation of Financial Statement !

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs '

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements 3

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 4

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset
Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction 3

HK(IFRIC)-Int14

Notes:

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008
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3.

+F+=H=+—HIFFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
convention except for investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are stated at fair values. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are
used in the preparation of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management'’s best knowledge and judgment
of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
December, each year.

“EELFER
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RYIBHRIERER AR
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

FEELFA = H=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Business combination (other that for combining entities under
common control) are accounted for by applying the purchase method.
This involves the revaluation at fair value of all identifiable assets
and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the
acquisition date, regardless of whether or not they were recorded in
the financial statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial
recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in
the consolidated balance sheet at their fair values, which are also used
as the bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group's accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are carried at cost less
any impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable at
the balance sheet date.
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3.

T4+ = =+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert
significant influence, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture. In consolidated financial
statements, investment in associates is initially recognised at cost
and subsequently accounted for using the equity method. Under
the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate is carried at
cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment loss,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale). The consolidated income statement
includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the associate for the year, including any impairment loss on goodwill
relating to the investment in associate recognised for the year.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group's
interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.
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FEELFA = H=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4

Associates (Continued)

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment
and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. After
the application of equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the
Group's investment in its associates. At each balance sheet date,
the Group determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in associate is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being
the difference between the recoverable amount (see note 3.11) of the
associate and its carrying amount.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in income statement
in the determination of the Group's share of the associate’s income
statement in which the investment is acquired.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Where the
associate uses accounting policies other than those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, adjustments
are made, where necessary, to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate’s financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates are
stated at cost less any impairment losses. The results of associate are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more
parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when the strategic financial and
operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous
consent of the venturers.

In the consolidated financial statements, interests in joint ventures are
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using the
equity method. Under the equity method, the Group's interest in joint
venture is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of the joint venture’s net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the joint venture for the year, including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investment in joint venture
recognised for the year.

When the Group's share of losses in joint venture equals or exceeds
its interest in the joint venture, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of joint venture. For this purpose, the Group's
interest in the joint venture is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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3.

3.5

Joint ventures (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the joint venture recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus
any costs directly attributable to the investment.

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment
and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. After
the application of equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the
Group's investment in its joint venture. At each balance sheet date,
the Group determines whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in joint venture is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being
the difference between the recoverable amount (see note 3.12) of the
joint venture and its carrying amount.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in income statement in
the determination of the Group’s share of the joint venture’s income
statement in which the investment is acquired.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and rendering
of services, net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

Sales of investments in securities and investments held for trading
are recognised on the execution of legally binding, unconditional and
irrevocable contracts.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised on the execution of
a legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable sales contracts.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Bank interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.7

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill arising on
acquisition of investments in associate and joint venture is set out in
notes 3.4 and 3.5 respectively.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
or an investment over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. The
cost of the business combination is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assume, and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination or investment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 3.11).

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of a business combination is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.
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+4F+=H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified
as an investment property in accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the investment
property. The carrying amounts recognised in the balance sheet reflect
the prevailing market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property is classified as property, plant and equipment and
stated at cost until construction or development is complete, at which
time it is reclassified as investment property. Any changes between the
fair value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in income statement.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or the sale
of an investment property is included in the income statement for the
period in which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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3.

3.9

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Over the lease terms, if
shorter,or 50 years
Over the lease terms, if
shorter,or 5 years

Leasehold buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of the land together with
direct costs attributable to the completion of the properties.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary, property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payment, interest in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business
combination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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3.

3.11

3.12

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro
rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation on amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out
below.

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
and investments in debt securities.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date. All financial assets
are recognised when, and only when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive

cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred. At each balance sheet date, financial assets are reviewed

to assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any

such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial assets.

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets included in
this category are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and include
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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3.

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated to this category or
do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from
a change in the fair value is recognised directly in equity,
except for impairment losses (see the policy below) and
foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity would be recognised in income
statement. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in income statement. Upon disposal,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
transferred to the income statement.

For available-for-sale investments in equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other than at fair value
through profit or loss are reviewed to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, the

impairment loss is measured and recognised as follows:

(i

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and the default of delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss is recognised in income statement
of the period in which the impairment occurs. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in income
statement of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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FEELFA = H=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. When a decline in the fair value
of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from equity and recognised
in income statement as impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
its fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in income statement.

Reversals for investment in equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale are not recognised in the income statement.
The subsequent increase in fair value is recognised directly
in equity. Impairment losses in respect of debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversal of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in income statement.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the balance sheet date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group's presentation currency, have been
converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
HK$ at the closing rates at the balance sheet date. Income and
expenses have been converted into the HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the translation reserve in equity. Goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1st January, 2005 have been treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated into HK$ at the closing rates.
Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1st
January, 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

Other exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.
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3.

3.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to the income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis
as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised
in income statement on a straight-line basis over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.
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3.15 Accounting for income taxes
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations
to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in the income statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in the
income statement or in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited directly to equity.
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3.

3.16

3.17

3.18

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand demand,
deposits with banks and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined
using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Share-based payment transactions

All share-based payment arrangements granted after 7th November,
2002 and had not vested on 1st January, 2005 are recognised in the
financial statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share-
based compensation are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the share options awarded. Their
value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.18

3.19

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in share option reserve.
If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of
share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates. No
adjustment to expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer
share options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Retirement benefit costs and short term employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provide through defined
contribution plans. The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or the
maximum mandatory contribution as required by the MPF Scheme
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The employer’s contributions of the
Group vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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3.

3.19

3.20

Retirement benefit costs and short term employee benefits
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in other jurisdictions are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the government of the respective jurisdiction. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll costs to
the retirement benefit to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

Short term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables. These are
included in balance sheet line items as other payables, deposits
received and accrued charges.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised as an expense in finance costs in the income
statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.20

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exiting
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in the income statement.

Other payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their
carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through a continuing use.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting the Group
has determined that business segments be presented as the primary
reporting format and geographical segments as the secondary
reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated costs represent
corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, receivables and operating
cash, and mainly exclude and available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, held-to-maturity
investments and other receivables. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation provision and
other payables.
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FEF+ = =+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.22 Segment reporting (Continued)

3.23

Capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
investment properties and property, plant and equipment, including
additions of assets resulting from acquisitions of subsidiaries, that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue is based on the
country in which the customer is located and total assets and capital
expenditure are where the assets are located.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the
party (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Company/Group; (i) has an interest in the Company
that gives it significant influence over the Company/Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Company/Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or its parent;

the party is a close family member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v);

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of the Company/Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Company/Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.24 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as contingent liabilities, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefit is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

—BTLEEH
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
3.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates. Estimating the value in use requires an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. With reference to the measures formulated
by the local authorities on the property investments held by foreign
investors, the directors of the Company have reviewed the carrying
value of goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary, Twente
Company Limited, (“Twente”), which holds certain investment
properties in Beijing. An impairment loss of HK$11,297,000 on
goodwill for as at 31st December, 2007 was recognised in the income
statement.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties of the Group are stated at fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3.8. The fair
values of investment properties, set out in note 15 to the financial
statements, are determined by an independent professional valuer,
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. Such valuations
are made based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainties and might materially differ from the actual results. In
making the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at the balance sheet date. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual transactions in
the market.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Provision for impairment of loan receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness, the collateral security and the past collection
history of each borrower. If the financial conditions of the borrowers
of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in impairment of their
ability to make repayments, additional allowance may be required.
If the financial conditions of the borrowers of the Group, on whose
account provision for impairment has been made, were improved and
no impairment of their ability to make payments were noted, reversal
of provision for impairment may be required.

Share-based employee compensation

Expense on share-based employee compensation is subject to the
limitations of the option pricing models adopted and the uncertainty
in estimates used by management in the assumptions. Should the
estimates including limited early exercise behaviour, expected interval
and frequency of open exercise periods in the share option life and
the relevant parameters of the share option model be changed, there
would be material changes in the amount of share option benefits
recognised in the income statement and share option reserve.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses impairment at each balance sheet date by
evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to
impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use
calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate
a number of key estimates and assumptions about future events,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making these key estimates and judgements,
the directors take into consideration assumptions that are mainly
based on market condition existing at the balance sheet dates and
appropriate market and discount rates. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions entered into
by the Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain jurisdictions other
than Hong Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
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5. WAREXERE 5. REVENUE AND TURNOVER
WA INEBREER &5 IEAEH Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represented total invoiced
SRR —_EERNEFERIERGRET 2 value of high-tech computers and servers sold as separately shown as the
HESRIBEKEBRERL ST+ F Discontinued operations in 2006 and rental income, property management
R EENEHERELERTZE 28 fee income and loan interest income in continuing operations in 2007 and
SUWA - MESTEBBIANREZA 2 UL 2006. Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:
AZHBEHE -AFEBRZKAN
T~ FESEER BAILEER ma
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
“ETLE ZTTAF CTETHF ZTTAF SITHE ZTENF
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

TEx  FTHT @ TER AT Tz TAR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

SHE SR B R RS 23 Sales of high-tech computers

and servers - - - 293,916 - 293,916
HEWRA Rental income 19,550 9,316 - - 19,550 9,316
MEEBEBRA Property management fee income 8,371 6,880 - = 8,371 6,880
EFHEHA Loan interest income 3,857 1,148 - - 3,857 1,148
Hh Others - 198 - - - 198

31,778 17,542 - 293916 31,778 311,458
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6. DEEE 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
FEREFR—FBEDE Primary reporting format — business segments
REBEDABATRABEEEEHHE : The Group is organised into five main business segments:

—  EKRE = Property investments;
— YEBEREE: = Property development and trading;
— FBERENTBEEE - Securities investment and securities trading;
-  SRR% R = Provision of financial services; and
— SREEEMRERRE RIER = High-tech computers and servers manufacturing and related business
¥E(ERZEEFNLA=1+H (discontinued on 30th September, 2006).
#Ak) o
5 BALEE
Continued operations Discontinued operations
EH LREE U it a8 ] &4
High-tech computers
Property Securities and servers
development ~investmentand Provision of manufacturing and
Property investment  andtrading  securities trading ~ financial services Others Elimination Total related business ~ Consolidated

CERCE B CERCE BT CENCE IMME CERE SR IR G 3R BEE 3R RN CERT BN R O
w07 W6 007 N6 007 W6 N0 N6 007 W6 0 06 07 W06 207 KSW0 2007 HKS000
TET TAT TET TAr i TAr TEn TAm AT TAr A T TR TAr TR TR TErT TAn
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKSOD0 HKS'000 HK$O0D HKSO00 HKSO00 HKS000 HKSO00 HKSO00 HKSO00 HKSO00 HKSO0D HKS000 HKS000

AN Segment revenue
e Eeril s 290 6% - - - - 3% 18 - % - - T8 s - W% 3T 3N
ke ie-seqment sdls T D T - T
it Total 291 161% - - - - U6 430 - 198 (21089 G154 31778 1754 - 83916 31778 311458
L Segment results 4781810929 40251 (d0840) 28679 1082 28666 3704 - B630) (1089 BN 12435 (36931) - (15648) 12435 (2,579
FOMERKA Unallocated other income - - - - - - - - - - - - 6019
FOREERR Unallocated corporate expenses - - - - - - - - - - - -0 QIeT)
BiK Finance costs - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
BY-FRERSR R Alowance for amount due from ajoint venture - - - - - - - - R (1 - - (11.308)
RF-FARbEVEN ER Alwance orloanto int verture - - - - - - - - 71 - - (16750
HTHHERLEI RERE Impaimentoss recogpisedin respect of avalable

for-sale nvestment - - - - - - - - - (589 - - - 68 - - - (58
HENEAR 2 4E/(58) (ainflLoss)on disposel of subsires - - - - - - - - - - - -6 B -0
RAnE-7HEnT NG (ain on deemed disposlof an asociate - - - - - - - - 1} - - B 13 - - 1}
EitRENTRE Shre of resuls of asocites - R - - - - - - -9 - - -ome - - - (17810)
EhaEhszE Shareofresuls of ot ventures - - - - - - - - (T - - (13608 - - - (13608)
R A Profoss) efore ncome tax 12186 (117980) S5 1% (112589
AR Income taxexperse 19639 68 - (38 (19639 (03
i/ (5R) ProftLoss) ortheyear 10202 (11861) <408 1000 (114599)

Hiat : BEPIHEIRERTEHE - Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices

78 Radkaesd=clng
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6. ZEMEE @) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
FTEREFRN—XB DI (E) Primary reporting format — business segments (Continued)
Continued operations Discontinued operations
BNRER
nERE VECEIEH SRER Eff it ] REBEHEREEEE &4
High-tech computers
Property Securities and servers
development ~ investment and Provision of manufacturing and
Property investment  andtrading  securities trading  financial services Others Elimination Total related business  Consolidated
CERE R DTN EDE TS CEEE CRME G RN EME DR ERE SR BN R BRSO
00006 2007 W06 2007 2006 007 206 2000 2006 007 2006 2000 2006 2007 HKFO0 2007 HK§'000
TEr TR TEn TAr TEr TEr Thr Thn T TEr TR TR A T T TR TEr TR
HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKFO00 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 ~HK$000
AHEE Seqment assets 305,05 159,102 479918 264000 28,143 9995 113929 1,400 89,442 - 928 927083 514714 - - 7083 514714
RBEATES Interests in associates 3181 - - - - - - - - - - - B8 - - 3187
EhBEAE Amounts due from assodates 1751 - - - - - - -6 - - BIE; - - 21816
FARAE Unallocated asets 29165 120308
#5E Totel assets 1,156,188 790025
BEEH Segment liabiliies 14733 4166 24610 9441 - -8 6 3604 - - 40128 17,888 - - 4018 17888
AEER Undlocated e U39 9475
458 Totel bl 6497 11363
EhABES Other segment information
AEER Alowance for doubtful debts “ - - - - - - - - - 8126 8575
& Depreciation 120 531 - - - - - 1,04 - - 120 15T 1811200 3006
FOTAE Unallocated depreciation - - - - - - - - - - - - 18 48
RERTETE Amortsaton of prepaid lease payments

-#AR - Unallocated - - - - - - - - - - - -0 100
5803 BRER Capital additons in espect of propery,

REETEN plant and equipment 140 41 - - - - - ki - VR 7] 160 1400 2486
Bh-FAELEIB EE Alowance for amount due fiom a jointventure - - - - - - 11,306 - - - - - - 11,306
RI-FRELR/ENCER Alowance forloan o aoint venture - - - - - - 16,751 - - - - - 16,751
THEERE, Impairment loss recogrised n espect of

BRZHERE avalble-for-sle nvestment - - - - - - 585 - - - 58 - - 5853
EEHS Wit-off of goodill 11297 = - = - = = = - -1 = - - 119 =

—2ELEEH

79

Annual Report 2007




B FE R AR MY RE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6. DEMEE ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
RRREFR — E D Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
RNEBAER 2 ZEBREBOLREER The Group’s operations are substantially located in Hong Kong and the PRC
HE(TNBEES) o NRIBEHEAERIR (other than Hong Kong) throughout the year. The following table provides
RS (TEZ2EEYMRREZHER)Z an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market, irrespective of the
DZEEST origin of the goods and services.
BESEER BAILER
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HE (FEEES) At a5 HE (T EfES) &a
PRC Others Total PRC Consolidated
(other than (other than
Hong Kong) Hong Kong)

CERHE ZREE CERLE RRE CERCE DEENE CREtE RN CEIRME RRE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TEn ThT TEn  TRER TER TEr TEr  TEn  TEx  TAn
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

A Revenue
HIMNEE External sales
(REPFHH) (by location of customers) 2248 17414 7530 128 31778 1754 - 293916 31778 311,458
EAHES Other segment information
(REEMEL) (by location of assets)
PHEE Segment assets 625008 301,000 302,035 213,654 927,043 514,714 - - 927,043 514714
A Capital addition 29 38 1373 54 1402 862 - 164 1402 2486
7. HEMpEX 7. OTHER EXPENSES
—EELF ZETRF
2007 2006
FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR—REEEERIE 2 EE Allowance for amounts due from a joint venture - 11,306
BYF—REBLEZERZER Allowance for loans to a joint venture - 16,751
A HEIRE ZREBE Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment - 5,853
- 33,910
8. B 8. FINANCE COSTS
SELEER DRIEER )
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
“IZTHEF ZTEAF STTEF ZTEAF —TTLE ZTERE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TET THT TAET FHT TERT FTHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAFNZEEEL Interest on bank loans wholly
FAIERZAE repayable within five years - = - 317 - 317

RYIBHRIZERBRA F
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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9.

+F+=H=+—HIFFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In May 2006, the Group entered into an agreement with K3EEE o+ &
E¥#AR /A7) (Tianjin Dawning Computer Industry Company Limited), to
dispose of its 100% interest in dtREEHXKEE B MBRAFR (Beijing
Dawning Tianyan Information Technology Company Limited), B}t 15 &
E%¥ (JbR) BR2AF (Dawning Information Industry (Beijing) Limited)
and 62.5% of its 83.1% interest in b REEHBIFTEHLBR A7 (Beijing
Dawning Novotech Co., Ltd.), which operates in high-tech computers and
servers manufacturing and related business, for an aggregate consideration
of RMB95,000,000 (equivalent to HK$91,346,000). 1t REESLAIF Rl A
[ 2 =](Beijing Dawning Novotech Co., Ltd.) became a 20.6% associate
upon completion of the disposals. This transaction was completed on 30th
September, 2006.

Profit for the period from the Discontinued operations is analysed as follows:

—ETRF—-A—H
EETRF
NA=+BHRE
Period from

1st January, 2006 to
30th September, 2006

FiET
HK$'000

AEARE S RH B & RIS RE K Loss from high-tech computers and servers manufacturing
TERAZETS 2 B8 and related business operations for the period (17,283)

HE SRR B R ARTS 28 84S K& Gain on disposals of high-tech computers and servers

TERASES &8 2 Was manufacturing and related business operations 21,352
4,069
—BRLEER
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9. BRLEEK 9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
NZEBEZNF—A—BE_ZEZETFh The results of the Discontinued operations for the period from 1st January,
B=1THHBEZERILEHE 2 ¥£E&E (D5t 2006 to 30th September, 2006, which were included in the consolidated
ABE-_EENFEF+-_A=+—HItHE income statement for the year ended 31st December, 2006, were as follows:
ErireEms) T

—EELHF ZETRF
2007 2006
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

S Turnover - 293,916

SHERAR Cost of sales - (261,929)

i AERE Gross profit - 31,987

Hoto ez Other income - 8,237

SHE R A Selling and distribution costs - (32,750)

THER Administrative expenses - (23,114)

EUR I Finance costs - (317)

MRETS T RIS 18 Loss before income tax - (15,957)

B Income tax expense - (1,326)

BRI B 1R Loss for the period - (17,283)
MRIEBETRF DRIEEBDFERHEE In 2006, the Discontinued operations used HK$86,340,000 in operating cash
R4 & 86,340,000 /87T  BIREET flow, used HK$1,319,000 in respect of investing activities and contributed
£ F9 1,319,000 78 JT K 7t B & % 7% 5 Bi HK$49,848,000 in respect of financing activities.

49,848,000 /&L

DRIFEBHNEERB2EERBEY The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Discontinued
BREE M 5F 39(b) MK EE © operations at the date of disposals are disclosed in note 39(b).

82 Radied=ilng
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10. BRFFEH AR (EE) 10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

BREEEER BRILER =&
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
“ITEE ZETRF STTLFE ZTENF —ITHE ZETRAF
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
T#x T TEL THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETISTRDRF / (B518) Profit/(Loss) before income
BB/ GIA) AT EIE - tax has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):
BIRFRX : Employee benefit expense:
s2Me (M) Directors’ remuneration (note 11)
-#Hg ~fees 900 900 - - 900 900
—He k= — salaries and allowances 2,427 6,034 - = 2,427 6,034
— BB — share options 3,206 = - = 3,206 =
— RIS B R ~ retirement benefit scheme
contributions 24 48 - - 24 43
6,557 6,982 - - 6,557 6,982
HthBT Other staff
—TERkE® — wages and salaries 4,470 6,653 - 21,219 4,470 27,872
— BB ~ share options 2,392 = - = 2,392 =
—RIKEF ~ retirement benefit
BE5 scheme contributions 29 252 - = 29 252
13,448 13,887 - 21,219 13,448 35,106
RERERE Allowances for bad and
doubtful debts - 449 - 8,126 - 8,575
FEEE Allowance for inventories - = - 14,246 - 14,246
(7 Gl Auditors’ remuneration 600 1,200 - - 600 1,200
BRARZ 2 FERAR Cost of inventories
recognised as an expense - 563 - 247,683 - 248,246
e Depreciation 1,378 2,028 - 1,431 1,378 3,459
HEWE  BERRELEE Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment - 43 - - - 43
BRI AERE Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments 100 100 - - 100 100
HEME  &ERE Minimum lease rentals in
respect of rented premises 486 41 - - 486 41
B () /B Exchange (gain)/loss (256) 3,637 - = (256) 3,637
MigHE M TR Write-off of other payables (3,072) = (3,072) =
i E A PR IR Write-off of other receivables 2,582 = - = 2,582 =
A Write-off of goodwill 11,297 = - = 11,297 =
BT LEER
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10. BEr B & ATER (BIE) 10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

&
o SEAELY BRIEEE s
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
CIEAE ZBERF CITITLE ZTERF _ITLF ZTTRF
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TERT THET TET FET TERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TR ELNBHL AR Interest income on financial assets
EREEZFSHA* carried at amortised cost*:
—RIER —bank deposits (5,662) (5,479) - @) (5,662) (5,487)
—BF—REELEZER ~loan to a joint venture - (1,141) - = - (1,141)
B —XRBERRZER —loan to a related company (1,557) @) - = (1,557) @)
—BEREFEE — investment in debt securities (4,029) (262) - = (4,029) (262)
—RFE=HZER — loan to third parties (4,200) = - = (4,200) =
(15,448) (6,889) - (8) (15,448) (6,897)
B AR Gain on de-registration of
Wz subsidiaries (723) = - = (723) =
Y —REERERE Reversal of impairment loss on
REEEREE amounts due from
a joint venture (262) - - - (262) -
BEEERN ARKA - Rental income under operating
B 8 6,974,000 T leases, less outgoings of
(ZZZ5F © 646,000/ 7T) HK$6,974,000
(2006: HK$646,000) (12,575) (8,669) - - (12,575) (8,669)
* ERERFSMALNBHERAARZ SREE @ Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost of HK$3,857,000 relating
2 F B U A A3,857,000/8 TL(Z T T XN F: to loan interest income (2006:HK$1,148,000) was included in “Revenue” on the face
1,148,000 BT ) st Adra Bmm B ab 2 [ WA © of the consolidated income statement.

RYIBHRIZER AR A
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1. EEME R SNEIEE FH N

EEHM

ENXENANUES(ZTTRF: A

HE-_FTTLF+=H=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

11. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2006: nine) directors

i) S8 2MamT were as follows:
i REER RIRER
BMEF HEGEA
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to retirement
#£ and benefits benefits HE
Fees in kind scheme Total
TiExT TET TiET TET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
—EZLE 2007
HITES ! Executive directors:
FraeE Wong Chung Tak 100 2,620 12 2,732
iR Tse Kam Fai 100 1,433 12 1,545
B FHITES Independent non-executive directors:
FEIfE Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 200 - - 200
BEE Liu Sing Piu, Chris 200 - - 200
M Chong Kally 200 790 - 990
FHTES Non-executive director:
Exfk Wong Ngo, Derick 100 790 - 890
900 5,633 24 6,557
“TELEER
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2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

1. ZEEMHERSHEIEESH  11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
(&) MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

5 2R RREER
EWiEF BE 5N
Salaries,  Contribution
allowances  to retirement

#&  and benefits benefits ek
Fees in kind scheme Total
FET TER FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZTTRF 2006
HiTES ! Executive directors:
T Wong Chung Tak 100 1,807 12 1,919
BXE Deng Wenyun
(BERZTTAFNA=+—HEHE)  (Resigned on 31st August, 2006) - 2,199 18 2,217
BES Gong Hanbing
(BRZZZX E=A=1HET) (Resigned on 30th March, 2006) - 1,142 6 1,148
A EHIE Tse Kam Fai 100 625 12 737
BYFHTES ! Independent non-executive directors:
ZFEIfE Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 200 = = 200
BREE Liu Sing Piu, Chris 200 = = 200
HER Chong Kally 200 = = 200
FHTES : Non-executive directors:
E'¢3 Wong Ngo, Derick 100 = = 100
BE (ERN =T "FLA++HEE) Chen Chao (Resigned on 17th July, 2006) = 261 = 261
900 6,034 48 6,982
RAREER » WEF M LS EME There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
EMESXFSHETABE - waive any remuneration during the year.
RAREER  AEBYEMES S NE During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
A BN & » fEAINAZN & B 2 18 E) ok B B an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
g o loss of office.

RYIBHRIZER AR A
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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2 -FFLF = J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

M. EEMERESHEEESHE 11. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR

(&) MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
RAREERN NEBTEAESS HE During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
A 3REBEASMAREBE KN INAREE an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
52 SRED SR B A (E o loss of office.
hEZESHMAL Five highest paid individuals
AEBGZSHRMZAZALTES - OF The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the
(ZZEERE : ZR) RAREIZES year included four (2006: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
HERMFBEE MR oA o &4 the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
—Z(ZETERE WME) ANTETREAEE (2006: two) individuals during the year are as follows:
ZFRENT
—EELF ZETRF
2007 2006
FiExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EAREH - EEZ8L - BRE Basic salaries, housing allowances, share
E AL R B YR options, other allowance and benefits in kind 1,050 1,979
RONEFIETEI SR Contribution to retirement benefits schemes 30 31
1,080 2,010
WEZMENF T 5AER : Their emoluments were within the following bands:
ABEH
Number of individuals
—EELF ZETRF
2007 2006
2 1,000,000 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0 1
1,000,001 7T = 1,500,000787C HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
1 2

“EELFER 87
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2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

12. PGB 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
HEREEG BAILER o)
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
“TELF ZTTAF CITE ZTERF —IEHE ZTTRHE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

TEx  TEm TExT FAT TER TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

AHTIE Current tax
BEFIEH Hong Kong profits tax
REEHIE Tax for the year 2,161 = - = 2,161 =
B SEATE T PRC Enterprise Income Tax
REFHIE Tax for the year 3,051 40 - 588 3,051 628
BEFEOR Under provision in
respect of prior years - - - 219 - 219
5,212 40 - 807 5212 847
RIERIE Deferred tax
rEE Current year 14,427 647 - 519 14,427 1,166
PSR % B Total income tax expense 19,639 687 - 1,326 19,639 2,013
REZEZ2BBMNEREIL17.5% th R 5 During the year, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
He AN AEBREEZE_ETF+= 17.5%. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made in the
A=+—RB I FE I EERLEEEHRR consolidated financial statements as the Group did not have any assessable
ZERBRT - BUSBRGE VB B®RE profits in Hong Kong for the year ended 31st December, 2006.
REBNETELBE -
EE M RDERE R AE 2 BIER A EA Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in
ERERZBETE - the relevant jurisdictions.
RZZEZTHF  REFEEEEN &R In 2005, pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Bl XEEBEFRHE 2B ARNMARE Group's PRC subsidiary was exempted from PRC income tax for two years
MEERTMEERCHENP MG starting from their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for
o mEE =FRES50% H % o R B the next three years. The PRC subsidiary was entitled to 50% reduction in
BRARRZZZNFEZEHE50% LWL 2006 and was disposed of during the year ended 31st December, 2006.
HE_ZZENF+_A=+—HItEE
HEHE -

Rl RN BERERAR
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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' E —ETFA = H=+—HIFFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

12. FiiERiR < #) 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
FIEHMAXENEEFRXRgE 2% Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit/(loss) at
A (EE) 2 SR ¢ applicable tax rates:
—EZtHF ZTTRF
2007 2006
FEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BrRETS R AR F, (E518) Profit/(Loss) before income tax
FHEXED Continuing operations 121,861 (117,980)
B IEZETE Discontinued operations - 5,395
121,861 (112,585)
AR B EAERE 15% E‘f%ZﬁIE Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15% 18,279 (16,888)
DIREE R R FE 2B Tax effect of share of results of associates - 2,686
DB BEREXRE B Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures - 2,041
AR A 2 B s 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 6,559 17,946
BEAFRBAZHIGTE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (3,142) (4,281)
RARBATIEEE 2 BT E Tax effect of unused tax losses to recognise 464 3,932
BABEARERZ BIAEE Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (4,926) (1,478)
BITEE DR Under-provision in the previous years - 219
TEEM ADEREE AL %ZE =N Effect of different tax rates of group
BRTRBRE companies operating in other jurisdictions 1,392 (2,005)
RIERE R 2R ISR Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised 56 =
Hith Others 957 (159)
FTiSBiF X Income tax expense 19,639 2,013
15% FRBEMSH AN EEEBKLE The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15% is the domestic tax rate in the
FRIEXZrAEER 2 BRHE - jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is substantially based.

a2

13. XA B REFE ARG RZR 13. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

AKRAalRERAEARE Tﬁ iR E Al Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
102,222,000 (=TT <X F: B of HK$102,222,000 (2006: a loss of HK$114,598,000), a profit of
114,598,000 7t ) H 1 & HK$3,723,000 (2006: a loss of HK$43,550,000) has been dealt with in the
3,723,000 m( =ZE T XN F: B #E financial statements of the Company.
43,550,000 % 7T ) BEAR R Al Z 8 %R
FAFIER

—ETLEFH
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2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

14. BREF (&EE) 14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
REGEEBDRIEED For continuing and discontinued operations
AABZEBRESEHEE AELEZER The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable
REEERERNRET (EE) HiRET to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the following
FIBURETH data:
—EELHF ZTERF
2007 2006
THET THT
HK$"000 HK$'000
RRARIBAERSA AEIEEF, (F8) Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company 102,222 (114,598)
—EELHF ZTERF
2007 2006
)
(restated)
MR Number of shares
BREREARF,(BE)M=E2 Weighted average number of ordinary share for the
Tm AR e 8 () purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per share (Note) 1,119,882,488 810,055,947
BREITERIRIEE B IR Weighted average number of ordinary shares deemed
RUATREBTETZ to be issued at nil consideration on the assumed
TmAR e A exercise of the warrants 3,726,027 =
HEREERNmE Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
ZE R NNE T2 the purposes of diluted earnings per share 1,123,608,515 810,055,947
Kt Notes:
FEHECTEAFT A=+ —RHRZEEL The above weighted average number of ordinary shares for the calculation of the basic
F+-A=+—BUEEEZERELXRHN (& earnings/(loss) per share for years ended 31st December, 2006 and 31st December,
B)FERAZ i E@BRMETFHEERAE - U 2007 have been adjusted to take into account of the consolidation of shares of the
ARAAARERFEAREELF A+ Company approved by equity holders of the Company at the special general meeting
BERZBRERFIAGHIEZARRZRNDE held on 12 February, 2007.
B o
RATERERE 25 RS St ZmE The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for both years did not assume the
EEZEREERT(FHBR) REZESHRELR exercise of the outstanding share options as the impact of the exercise of the share
FELT(E o options was anti-dilutive.

RYIBHRIZER AR A
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2 -FFLF = J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

14. BRER (FHE) =) 14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
BEKEER For continuing operations
RATEBEBEREAEAE(EREEE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share from
R EBRERNREERT(EE) T continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
BETSE1TE Company is based on the following data:
—EZtHF ZTTRF
2007 2006
FEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RNATEREE AELZ Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity
swr, (E18) holders of the Company 102,222 (114,598)
W REBRIEEBZ Less: Profit for the year from
FE A (MEE9) discontinued operations (note 9) - 4,069
RNRREmITA ABLREFHE Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations
X5z mF (E8) attributable to the equity holders of the Company 102,222 (118,667)
RZZEZRF EREEBZ2ERE In 2006, basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations is HK0.50
RANMDBRBEEREEBEE=_FZT cent per share, based on the profit for the year ended 31st December, 2006
NE+T_A=1+—"BLEFEZHF from the discontinued operations of HK$4,069,000 (note 9).
4,069,000/8 STt & + BE X 0.5078 1l
(BIzE9) -
HRITEERE 2 RREE - G The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for both years did not
BzmEFE 2 SRETRT,(EE) assume the exercise of the outstanding share options as the impact of the
IRr TH R 5% 5% 5 B AR I AR AT {6 o exercise of the share options was anti-dilutive.
—ZTLFEFR
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R —FTZT+F+=H=+—HI-FZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

%%/“*E?%}TEVE% 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/INVESTMENT
’%Z & PROPERTIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

NEEMNEAARDESHERER
BENAEEMBENFEESIRARF
ERAFERDBEEARSREYE -

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

92

EEABRTREAEAZEZHWMEWT : Changes to the carrying amounts in the balance sheet are summarised as
follows:

—E5tE  —REAF
2007 2006
B FEx FHET
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
R—R—RZKHEEAE Carrying amounts at 1st January 150,000 115,000
NE Additions 326,893 -
HE Disposals (51,920) =
HEME  BE KRR Transfer from property, plant and equipment a 33,500
EEn T E Y Transfer to properties held for sale b (175,000) =
NEERE 2 F = Net gain from fair value adjustments 47,275 1,500
297,248 150,000
REATMHENE ZIREME Investment property classified as held for sale c (52,248) =
RTZA=+—RZKRHEEAE Carrying amounts at 31st December 245,000 150,000

wiiz -

(@ RZTT FEHREMECETERR
H BR ® J¥ {E 422,193,000 T ( K &
16)) BREIREYER - HEMBKER
11,307,000 7T * H 8,000,000 7T
AABERNBOR T _FEHERZ
B —¥%E 2 RMERE - #35K3,307,000%5
TETAYIFEEGHEE - Bt BERE
¥ % 2 A 433,500,000 c R=F
TRE+ZA=+—H UWHESEHE
35,000,000/7T © #Utt - IR FEE—F
BR4§2 1,500,000 Bt 2 W RBE=F
TRF+ZA=t—RILFERR -

£/ B LAR{ES1,920,0008 7T H &% %
EWE - BULIR A F(EE1$16,920,000%
TTZREREBEE_TTtF+—_A=1+—
BILFERER -

RYIBHRIZER AR A
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

Notes:

(a)

There was a revaluation gain of HK$11,307,000 in 2006 upon the transfer of
a leasehold property (at the time when the transfer was made, its net book
value was HK$22,193,000 (note 16)) to investment properties, amongst which
HK$8,000,000 was credited to the income statement to reverse an impairment
loss on the same properties recognised in 2002, and the remaining amount of
HK$3,307,000 was credited to the properties revaluation reserve. Accordingly,
the amount transferred to investment properties is HK$33,500,000. As at 31st
December, 2006, this property was revalued to HK$35,000,000 and as a result,
a further gain in fair value of HK$ 1,500,000 was recognised for the year ended
31st December, 2006.

During the year, this investment property was disposed of at a consideration
of HK$51,920,000 and as a result, a gain in fair value of HK$16,920,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31st December, 2007.
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B 75 R Y 5

15. REWX D EAFEEH
EC2REYE #)
HtaE - (48)

by RZZETLELAHA AEEEBK
BB AREE —HIREME (MiE
38(a)(iii)) » BIBEAARNR=_FZTLFNA
+LRBRZ —EAER  WHEIZRS
BEAUEEE  WEINARBAEHEEZ
BEME  RATFECHARERNE R
BIME - SIS D AN E T
MEBEEE - REEE - WMEZAT
84 175,000,000 7T © ALt - RAFE
EN132.1,087,000 70 2 Wz A iR & B
KRR -

(0 RZIZETZLF-_A-++tH A£EE
BYRE-—HNBARBE —HIREME
(Mt#E38(a)(ii) s R=ZZFEZTLF+ AN
B ASER—ZBIE=FRURE
52,248,000 B ST HE LW EFT LV HF E
B Bt WOERBEARIHE
BREEEHREZRENE] - RZTF
tE+-A=+—0 K2EESHH
FHREZAE WHEZEREEG®R
52,248,000/ 7T ° AR FREEE B ARTT
K BHER-_ZENEF_A=-tHhA%
ﬁjzo

REMERPPEOFE > IR _FTLF =
A=t+—HmBIRAEREX[EME KT
BeiithEREXERARARNRAFMEET
ftfE °

REBREEMEZ EZREFERES
M :

EELFF = H=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 5th July, 2007, the Group acquired an investment property through the
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38(a)(iii)). Pursuant to a resolution of the
directors of the Company passed on 17th September, 2007, the intention of
this property was changed to trading assets and is presented as a property held
for sale and the necessary development work to sub-divide this property into
smaller units to increase its potential value has been commenced during the
year. Upon the transfer, fair value of this property is HK$175,000,000 and as
a result, gain in fair value of HK$1,087,000 is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

(a] On 27th February, 2007, the Group acquired an investment property through
the acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38(a)(ii)). On 8th October, 2007, the Group
entered into a preliminary sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of this property at a consideration of HK$52,248,000.
Accordingly, this property is classified as “investment properties classified as
held for sale”. As at 31st December, 2007, the carrying amount of the property
is revalued to HK$52,248,000 with reference to the consideration as stipulated
in the sale and purchase agreement. This transaction is not completed at the
balance sheet date and is expected to be completed on 29th February, 2008.

Investments properties are held under the medium term of lease and were valued at
open market value as at 31st December, 2007 by an independent and professional
qualified valuers, Savills Valuation and Professional Limited.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their carrying amount are
analysed as follows:

—ETLF It

2007 2006

FET FiET

HK$'000 HK$'000

URES In Hong Kong - 35,000
{vRiAas In PRC 245,000 115,000
245,000 150,000

—EELFFER 93
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2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

16. Y15 ~ BEK=&E

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ARE Group
Ba - %8
LEE| HER RHFAZ
HEgT NEEE i B4 it b
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
TAL TAL TAT TAT TAL ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K22 5-A-H At Tst January, 2006
kA& Cost 36,528 2,817 10,689 4414 7,385 61,833
2iHhE Accumulated depreciation (10,885) (1,410) (7,231) (3,160) (4,090) (26,776)
REFE Net book amount 25,643 1,407 3458 1,254 3,295 35,057
BE-TZ/ETA=T—HIEE Yearended 31st December, 2006
FREFE Opening net book amount 25,643 1,407 3,458 1,254 3,295 35,057
ERERENE Transfer to investment
(MizE15) properties (note 15) (22,193) - - - - (22,193)
HERBAR Disposals of subsidiaries 2,912) - (3,306) (489) (1,409) (8,116)
NE Additions - - 896 406 1,184 2,486
L& Disposals - - (40) 6) (1,990) (2,036)
& Depreciation (538) (586) (1,008) (590) (737) (3,459)
EHER Exchange differences - 57 - 35 63 155
EREAFE Closing net book amount - 878 - 610 406 1,894
RZEEAFTZA=1T-H At 315t December, 2006
A Cost - 2,930 - 2,764 1,166 6,860
2iHhE Accumulated depreciation - (2,052) - (2,154) (760) (4,966)
KEFE Net book amount - 878 - 610 406 1,894
BETRLETA=T—HIEEE Yearended 31st December, 2007
ERAFE Opening net book amount - 878 - 610 406 1,894
EHER Exchange differences - 56 - 2 15 98
NE Additions - - - 29 1,373 1,402
& Depreciation - (624) - (516) (238) (1378)
ERRAZE Closing net book amount - 310 - 150 1,556 2,016
RZEBtF+-A=1-H At 315t December, 2007
A Cost - 3,117 - 2277 2,601 7,995
25HhE Accumulated depreciation - (2,807) - (2,127) (1,045) (5,979)
REFE Net book amount - 310 - 150 1,556 2,016

RYIBHRIZER AR F
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16. 1% - BMENRRZE &)

2 -FFLF = J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

b N/NE] Company
FAh - HEB
RPFAE
B AE Pk
Furniture,
fixtures and
office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZTRF—HA—H At 1st January, 2006
D& Cost 631 4,743 5,374
Ritinge Accumulated depreciation (618) (2,371) (2,989)
FREFE Net book amount 13 2,372 2,385
BEZTTRNF+ZA=1+—HILFE Year ended 31st December, 2006
FHRREFE Opening net book amount 13 2,372 2,385
VN T Additions 190 194 384
HE Disposals ) (1,724) (1,726)
e Depreciation (17) (436) (453)
FARREFE Closing net book amount 184 406 590
RZEZRF+_A=+—H At 31st December, 2006
D& Cost 418 598 1,016
2iting& Accumulated depreciation (234) (192) (426)
FREHE Net book amount 184 406 590
BE-TT+F+-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31st December, 2007
FHRREFE Opening net book amount 184 406 590
NE Additions 11 - 11
e Depreciation (66) (63) (129)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 129 343 472
RZET+F+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2007
D& Cost 361 598 959
2iting& Accumulated depreciation (232) (255) (487)
BRENFE Net book amount 129 343 472
BT LEER
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R —FTZT+F+=H=+—HI-FZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

17. FBNEHERIE —XKEE 17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS-GROUP
AEBREE T EEEEMEER The Group's interests in leasehold land represent prepaid operating lease
B8 EREFELS AT ¢ payments and their net carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
—TTLF —TTRF
2007 2006
FEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FYRREFE Opening net carrying amount 4,000 4,100
B 5H Amortisation (100) (100)
FRREFE Closing net carrying amount 3,900 4,000
REBIREH MBS In Hong Kong held under medium-term lease 3,900 4,000
E2|ABZHTAT Analysed for reporting purposes as
EMENEE Non-current assets 3,800 3,900
mENEE Current assets 100 100
3,900 4,000
18. EA M B 1~ = 2 #E & ~ #& 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
W FEAT Mt B A B 2 FRIE FROM/ TO SUBSIDIARIES
¥ NN Company
—TTLF —TTRF
2007 2006
FEx FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEEMRRG  HEAA Unlisted shares, at cost 15,013 49,380
o BERREEE BE Less: Provision for impairment losses recognised - (42,566)
15,013 6,814
PP B A R) 2 5k38 Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,783,041 1,551,191
W BHERREEE Less: Impairment losses recognised (787,601) (846,573)
995,440 704,618
FERIB B A Rl 2 7k18 Amounts due to subsidiaries 50,293 27,134

RYIBHRIZER AR F
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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HE—FZTfF+— H=+—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007

18. AKI B A 7 2 # % ~FE 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
W, P& A5 M JE NAZRIE FROM/ TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(%)
FEUNHIB A BB 2 EEE 2 &8 - Movement for impairment provision of amount due from subsidiaries:
—EELF ZETRF
2007 2006
FEx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—RA—Rz#&R Balance at 1st January 846,573 1,200,246
RERNEE Provided during the year - 3,000
i Peeh=— 0 E NI 6 Written-off on deregistration/ disposal of subsidiaries (58,972) (356,673)
RTEZA=+—B2# Balance at 31st December 787,601 846,573
BB AR BB EHRTERR - &8 The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
RARE K (EE o demand.
R_EELFF+_A=+—HB2Z2FEW Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2007 are detailed
BAR 2 FMERERKIEE4LS - in note 43.
19. REfE QAR 2R 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
rEE /N
Group Company
“EELFE ZTTREF  —ETEE ZZERF
2007 2006 2007 2006
T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LT - R Unlisted shares, at cost - = - 8
ERFEER Share of net assets - 33,187 - =
AR Provision for impairment - = - (8)
- 33,187 - -

e nase.l O7
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2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

19. REFE QB 2w () 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
B ENR B ERTEER - 28 Balances with associates were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
RIEEKEEE - NEBEB S AT 28 demand. The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
BERBMEZ70T : associates is set out below:
—EELHF ZETRF
2007 2006
FET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
wEE Total assets - 113,835
FEN=N Total liabilities - (48,850)
BEFAE Net assets - 64,985
AEEEREBE AR ZEEFE Group's share of net assets of associates - 33,187
S Turnover - 193,854
FEEE Loss for the year - (14,826)
AEE G E AR FEER Group’s share of results of associates for the year - (17,910)
HRR-_ZE+F—A—HAERZ As the only principal associate of the Group as at 1st January, 2007, Twente
fE—EEHE AR Twente Company Company Limited (“Twente"”), became a subsidiary of the Group in January
Limited ([Twente ) IR =TT +%F— A5k 2007, there was no significant share of results of associate for the year ended
ABAEEZz —HNBAR  HEBZ_F 31st December, 2007 and the results of Twente have been included in the
TLEF+ A=+ —HIEFERESEAN consolidated income statements during the year. The principal activities of
FE(EEEE A RIEE  Twente 2 E B X Twente is properties investment.
BYIFERE o

RYIBHRIZER AR F
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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HE-_FTTLF+=H=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

20. AEE ¥ o fEZ —72%E  20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES - GROUP
—EELF ZEER
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—RA—Rz#&R Balance at 1st January
JEEMRRGS - EAA Unlisted shares, at cost - 13,084
BREEDLEXERA Share of results of joint ventures - (13,608)
HRBINEBSEE 2 EH Z5E Exchange difference arising from translation
of foreign operations - 524
EfB AT B &R TVEEE . 28 Balances with joint ventures were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
RIRZ RIS EE - demand.
NR-_ZEENE=F  NEFHEANEH In March 2004, the Group entered into a loan agreement with Jingke
SBCESEB EEFI Y —HERE Information, a joint venture of the Group, pursuant to which the Group
B AREBERERAGZEEEBREESR agreed to provide a non-revolving secured loan of up to RMB15,000,000
% & AR % 15,000,000 T(HERL (equivalent to approximately HK$14,151,000) to Jingke Information. The
14,151,000 B7T) ZIEERKFE R - loan carried interest at HKBC prime rate. The effective interest rate in 2006
EFUBSELETREEN RS - ranged between 7.75% and 8% per annum. The loan was secured by
RIEZIRNEZERENENFTISE each of the shareholders of Jingke Information by charging their respective
EQEZHE - ZETHEREERKER equity interests in Jingke Information to the Group. The loan principal and
BEERERZE 7RI T ARER the related interest were expired on 31st December, 2005. In addition,
VEHRIR - BERAE REBABEER-Z Jingke Information also owes to the Group an amount of RMB$8,000,000
ERE+_A=+—HBEH - I & (equivalent to approximately HK$7,547,000). Allowances for both amounts
BHE BN R AN & B A R 8,000,000 were made in 2006.

T (MBEMN L 7,547,000 7T ) 2 58 ©
MRoBTREDY FAMEREELE

& o

Legal action had been undertaken by the Group against Jingke Information
REBDZR-ZEE NEFHHERHME B in 2006. The legal actions is still in process, no repayment had been received
BURARITE) - ARTEIRELEITH - from Jingke Information at the balance sheet date.

BR&EE B ARKEIARHE B Z ERME
BHRIA ©

—BTLEEH
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R —FTZT+F+=H=+—HI-FZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

20. AR B ¥ 2R — %K@ 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES — GROUP
(%) (Continued)
NEBEEPXEZHMBERBEZEZ%|0 The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint ventures
T are set out below:
ZETLF —TERF
2007 2006
FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
wEE Total assets 41,465 40,905
HAE Total liabilities (41,929) (41,340)
BEFRE Net liabilities (464) (435)
rEEREEERE I EEFE Group’s share of net assets of joint ventures - =
e Turnover 26,491 23,316
FEEF(B518) Profit/(Loss) for the year 49 (27,117)
AEEREEERE L FEER Group's share of results of joint ventures for the year - (13,608)
REBEBEREZFBNOT Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:
BEER B Bat
e i EEMY mEEER RER# BRAHK TEEH
Form of Place of Percentage of
business establishment Ownership voting Profit
Company name structure and operations interest power sharing Principal activities
RESMEREXERAR ML HE 51 40 51 SERHEE TN
Wuhan Jingke Information  Incorporate PRC 51 40 51 Manufacture and
Industry Co., Ltd. sale of electronic
components
RESMETARAR Baliiz A HE 51 40 51 NG
Wuhan Jingke Incorporate PRC 51 40 51 In the process of
Electronic Co., Ltd. liquidation
REBZEERERARRIBERS - The Group's joint ventures are indirectly held by the Company. The Group’s
REBREERLEZERARIIERB R interests in the joint ventures are not accounted for as subsidiaries because
A RERAEBHEZEFEE 2EGX the Group’s controls over these entities are restricted by certain provisions
EELEBEE THEXRSG - EFR in the joint venture agreements. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
R AEERBETEENEELEZ does not have unilateral control of the boards of directors but can jointly
BExe BUHZSEBHBMNEALE control, with the other shareholders, over these entities. Accordingly, equity
DBt AEERZEEEREE method of accounting is used to account for the Group’s interests in these
WIS BEHAE © joint ventures.

100 Radaes= el
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HE-_FTTLF+=H=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

20. REE ¥z —REE  20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES — GROUP

(%) (Continued)
REEBDKRIIERHELREEDLEZE The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of the joint
B REERRFZAERAREZES ventures. The amounts of unrecognised share of those joint ventures, both
BRFERELOT for the years and cumulatively, are as follows:
—EELF ZZTRF
2007 2006
TEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RNEFARMERIENL Unrecognised share of losses of joint
AEALEEE ventures for the year - 222
RErRIERIEN Accumulated unrecognised share of
AERAMHEEE losses of joint ventures 197 222
21. B -XKHE 21. GOODWILL - GROUP
HERASB2EEZEEH AN KE The main changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill result from the
TwenteFT2 (F13E38(a)) A& 2 BRI F acquisition of Twente (note 38(a)). The net carrying amount of goodwill is
AN - analysed as follows:
—EELF ZETRFE
2007 2006
TEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rn—A—H At 1st January
BRI 4258 Gross carrying amount - =
BEHRE Accumulated impairment - =
R—A—RBZREF5E Net carrying amount 1st January - =
R—A—RBZREF5E Net carrying amount at 1st January - =
I — B AR Acquisition of a subsidiary 11,297 =
REEE Impairment losses (11,297) =
bE N FETE Net exchange differences - =
RZZBZ2LF+-A=1+—2REFH Net carrying amount at 31st December, 2007 - =
R=TET+F+=-A=1+—H At 31st December, 2007
BRI 4258 Gross carrying amount - =
BEHRE Accumulated impairment - =
BREFER Net carrying amount - =
2EZBRABITEMSTHBEIIMEEERER With reference to the measures formulated by the local authorities on the
MEREMERNER  ~NAREED property investments held by foreign investors, the directors of the Company
ERRKE-—RWB AR TwenteME have reviewed the carrying value of goodwill arising on the acquisition of
EZEBEREME ZMBARNIL R its subsidiary, Twente, which holds certain investment properties in Beijing.
BETREME N_ZZTL+F+_H An impairment loss of HK$11,297,000 on goodwill as at 31st December,
=+—H 211,297,000 % T i £ 5 (B & 2007 was recognised in the income statement. The recoverable amount is
BERBZRARER - AT RE S ERE determined based on its fair value less cost to sell by reference to market
ERTFEBHEXN N2 RELGERMR value based on the valuation report prepared by professional valuer.

HEERE TENEE -

“EELFER
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2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

22. ERESFRE -XKEE 22. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES — GROUP
ZEBRTINAREEE Z2mBEIIELETE The balance represents the unlisted debt securities in the PRC denominated
BiEH  BHRREZERFNER5.87 in RMB. The effective interest rate of the investments in securities is 5.87%
B(ZEZERFE:525F) - (2006: 5.25%) per annum.

—EELHF ZETRF
2007 2006
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

IELETESES Unlisted debt securities 15,956 15,000
ELTEFEMERTERAESEE 2 # The unlisted debt securities were issued by two institutions in the PRC, which
BT ZEMEBRKEENEE A have high reputation in the PRC. The fund raised under these two debt
CAREABRRBRERZVENEZIER securities are used for sound and reliable projects with steady cashflow.

g o
BREFLEZEFTHRN BT ¢ The contracted maturity dates of investment securities are as follows:
—EELHF ZEERF
2007 2006
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

ELTEBHES Unlisted debt securities:

—FR Within one year 15,956 =

ZR—FELRESE In more than one year but not more than five years - 15,000

15,956 15,000

102 EElGEEE i
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B 75 R Y 5

' E —ETFA = H=+—HIFFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

23. HFEYE-—FKH 23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE — GROUP
—TTF —ETNF
2007 2006
P FBT FiET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PR Cost 479,840 304,840
W R EEERE Less: Provision for impairment loss (a) - (40,840)
479,840 264,000
RRES R HANER In Hong Kong, held on medium term lease (b) 175,000 =
R E - RRABEAEE In the PRC, held on long term lease 304,840 264,000
479,840 264,000

Bt -

(b)

R-ZEZAF+-_A=+—8 B2ELEBZL
R A E RS Y 2 KL AN 1E 40,840,000 T2
REBGERE - U EIRRESS) - EREMD
BERREKE  EERADAELRE  ZSE
HERFRESREE

R-ZTB+F+_f AEER—ZBIE=FH
RN —HEE W - Bt AR {E 100,856,000 7
THERBBHEHEZETMEST - #ER
SHEBAER =TT NFHAAITEK °

R-ZTTZNF_R AEEHE-—EBIFE=
FANBS— O BREEERE BIEURKE
215,000,000 T ER BB FHIEHEZHRTY
X¥EILc 2SR GEHENR ST N\E=A=
E}Z °

Notes:

As at 31st December, 2006, provision of impairment loss of HK$40,840,000 was made
against the cost of properties held for sale to reinstate to net realisable values with
reference to the then open market value. This provision was reversed in full amount
during the year as the directors consider that this is not required in view of the current
market value which is now higher than the cost.

In December 2007, a sale and purchase agreement was entered into between the
Group and an independent third party to sell certain units of the properties held for sale
in Hong Kong for a consideration of HK$100,856,000. This transaction is expected to
be completed before May 2008.

In February 2008, another provisional sale and purchase agreement was entered into
between the Group and an independent third party to sell the remaining units of the
properties held for sale in Hong Kong for a consideration of HK$215,000,000. This
transaction is expected to be completed before March 2008.

“EELFER
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e —FZFF+=H=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

24. B REMEWYWERE: - AN 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

=

MERRE-AEH PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS — GROUP
REEANREREZEELR - — R A defined credit policy is maintained within the Group. The general credit
FEEMA—Z=[A HETEEIR terms range from one to three months, except for certain well-established
HEBBRZEFAZARRE—F 215 customers, where the terms are further extended to a maximum of one year.
i - BUBEFPHERREERE - K Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
SEB N EBIESRBE 2 EBYFRIE strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise its credit risk.
NEREREHEEERKR SEEEET Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management.
BRI A AR AE A o
—TTLF —TERF
2007 2006
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUAR K Trade receivables 1,194 =
Efb IR - TERTRIE RiEe Other receivables, prepayments and deposits 1,818 2,170
3,012 2,170
FEEEERR - BHREMEBWERR The director of the Group considered that the fair values of trade and other
ZAVEEEEASBEY M EEAE receivables are not materially different from their carrying amount because
£ RARZEHEERKRAHERES these amounts have short maturity periods on their inception.
BAG R HIHAR o
FMEZESRERREFIN_ZEZEL+F+ -4 All trade receivable are not past due as at 31st December, 2007. An aged
=+t—HHEKRER REEBD - BUER analysis of the trade receivables at the balance sheet date, based on invoice
FOREFE B = B AT E 2 BR Bk D AT a0 date, net of allowances, is as follows:
T
—TTLF —TERF
2007 2006
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
308K Within 30 days 446 -
31£290H 31 to 90 days 748 -
1,194 -
FrBEE 5 Kk E YR B R E R All trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of
IEEITER - impairment.
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25. IR1T7&8% - FREEB S 25. BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH
~EE /N
Group Company
—ETLE ZBERE SIEETEF ZEBERE
2007 2006 2007 2006
FBr FET TBr FTAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITR e RFHERE Cash at bank and in hand 165,575 73,686 1,047 9,901
REERRITIF Short-term bank deposits 62,563 144,576 38,645 102,033
228,138 218,262 39,692 111,934
RITES  FRAESBEEAER LK Bank balances, deposits and cash comprise cash held by the Group and the
R E R MREHBA=EA Company and short-term bank deposits with originally maturity of three
KELMEENT033EE6.18E(=F months or less, and carry interests ranging from 0.33% to 6.18% (2006:
TREFE - NF0.72EE527F) 2 B HAR 0.72% to 5.27%) per annum. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
TEFX - -BELRSEEBEZEERE equivalents approximate their fair values.

HEENFERE -

Be&kBeHEBEEBEUATHD ¢ Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:
—EETLHF ZETRF
2007 2006
AR (TARK]) Renminbi (“RMB") ANERERVIB152,3820 AR RMB80,8407T
xm ([FExl) United States dollars (“US$") US$ 889%7T US$ 12,8523t
ARBATEREBKEMER  BiR RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC's
B[R EIMNEEIRRE | & [EE - EE Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
ENEEERTE]  ANEBEEFEB/ER Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
A BINE X 2 RITIARB Lk to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
REME - foreign exchange business.

26. HEMBAGEKAREB 24 26. BALANCE OF CONSIDERATION RECEIVALBE

B2 FROM DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDAIRIES
ZEFHERFANBBER  FHFE This has been fully repaid during the year and is detailed in note 39(b).
HAKIFE39(b) °

“EELFER
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2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

27. RRER —X&EH 27. LOAN RECEIVABLES — GROUP
—ETLHF ZETRF
2007 2006
Fi&T FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000

MEWM S 2 EKERDT : Loan receivables analysed for reporting purposes as:

JEmENEB D Non-current portion 3,000 =
MENEE Current assets 110,891 1,201
113,891 1,201

BENERERA  UEMKRINETEE
B BB ERIEZSENT ¢

Included in loan receivables are the following amounts denominated in a

currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

—EELE —EETRF

2007 2006

BT ([R7T]) Australian dollars (“AUD") SBITAUD SBITAUD
2,000,000 200,000

R-_ZEZE+F+_A=+—H ' LiufE
WEFIE TS A EA

(a) —MRBEBBAXSHMB LD
Z A )3 1766,000,000 7 7T 2 A
HEES

(b) —MELTRAREZ10% KiE

() —fERHE_ETZA 7R Z 10,000,000A%
B&fn

d —MEREMN TR R Z 10,500,000 A%
B&fn

() —HREXFMEMZARZ %
HITEFEMECBEALR &

() MIBREM 2 -

106 ElGEsE el
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As at 31st December, 2007, the above loan receivables were secured by the
followings:

a)

b)

d)

Convertible bonds amounted to HK$66 million issued by a company
listed on the SEHK;

10% equity interest in an unlisted company;

10,000,000 shares of a company listed in the PRC;

10,500,000 shares of a company listed in Australia;

A personal guarantee executed by an executive director of a company

listed on the SEHK; and

Two properties located in Australia.
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HE2—FZFLF+=H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007

27. EINBER —KE&EE

BT -—REAERRZERI - ERE
WERGRBH - REHIFARBE 2 &
Y8 R 2 B R A BRI I B3 R AL 8% © 1%
F—REBRRERZFBOAT :

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)

)

All loan receivables are not past due as at 31st December, 2007 except for
a loan to a related party. Loan receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of borrowers for whom there was no recent
history of default. Particulars of the loan to a related party are as follows:

R=TBZLF R=TBERF RER I
BEAL HEEREEZ +=A=+-—H +=B=+-—H REEZ
=L EEEW ZEE 2 i BeEE
Name of Balance at Balance at Maximum amount
interested 31st December, 31st December, outstanding
Name of related party director 2007 2006 during the year
FET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Hatch Projects Limited (“HPL") AR
Hatch Projects Limited (“HPL") Tse Kam Fai 13,767 1,201 13,767

RZZEEXE+-_A+EHB  AREZ
2EMBARIEEEBMARAR(H
Z ) BEHPL(—RRBRMEMKILZ A
Al REMEREEY  AEEEFE
10% 2 B ) I —H BB °
ARAER—BESEMEHPLZES -
BEERHZ BRAERERZ A
5,000,000 8 M 7T (XA 34,223,000
BIL)ZBESBR - FR - BRDREHE
2,000,00032 7t (#712,200,000 % 7t ) 38
TLZ BT HPL - A 491,190,0002 7T
(#97,259,000 TL)HPLER ZZZ N\
FZREE - ZFERTIAHPLATESR
ZWEE - HPLATE B = 2 a0 32 4 & HPL
G HMIRRIE A 2 HPLATAE &
1TRAD Z B& 1D #2468 2 HPL Unit Trust Z &
BATEN 2 BAIRIBIEHER - ZFEXK
FREAB175E  WEREXIREHABH
B—FNEE ZEERR_ZZLF
+ZA=+—H®@H - £+ 810,000
THEHER=_ZZN\F=ALE -

On 15th December, 2006, Cathay Holdings Limited (“Cathay”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement with
HPL, a company incorporated in Australia and is engaged in the business
of property investment, in which the Group has 10% beneficial interests.
The Company designated one of its directors as a director of HPL. Pursuant
to the loan agreement, Cathay agreed to provide cash advances of up to
AUD5,000,000(equivalent to approximately HK$34,223,000). During the
year, Cathay advanced AUD2,000,000 (approximately HK$12,200,000) to
HPL of which AUD1,190,000 (approximately HK$7,259,000) has been repaid
by HPL in February 2008. The loan is secured by the properties owned by
HPL, deed of charge over all the assets and undertakings of HPL, mortgage
of shares over all the issued shares in HPL held by other shareholders, an
mortgage of units over all the issued units in the HPL Unit Trust. The loan
bears interest at 17.5% per annum and is repayable in one year from the
first drawn date. The loan was past due as at 31st December, 2007, of which
AUD810,000 was expected to be settled in March 2008.
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— T LFF = H=+—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007

_-t— ==
8. AIIHERE —K&H 28. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT — GROUP
—EELEF ZEERF
2007 2006
FBT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT Equity securities
JEETIRRS © HRAKA Unlisted shares, at cost - 45,853
B BERZREEE Less: Impairment losses recognised - (5,853)
- 40,000

29.

ZHEERNEERPRKIZIAATE
EMZAMEDREROERAR ([E
1) 217.78% A #ez - ZFEAIHR T
AEBHEE20% Em 2 BE AT - KA
RBEZZEZNF+_A=1+—HLF
EEMBRREINLEMRER 2 EEE
ﬁﬁ%/‘%t’

RZZBTZXRF+R=+—H EF=2
REEARRFZE2ENBE AR Treasure
Land Enterprises Limited ([Treasure
Land]) (FFAERM L) BB HHELZ
RESFHEREE  Bit - ARFERER
& B 15 R M RERRORL (B 8548 5,853,000
BT o

2 ATEIIABRES SR
G - REBKAA A

ZHBIREBERLTRAES Z2KE -
ZEBHFDBEEEERS - ZFRE
ZAFEC2RENGEER ZREE
c BAFEIABREZEHEER
BRRERYH PR ES  EARE
MEXRTELEAESH 2D -

RYIBHRIZER AR F
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

29.

The amount represented the Group’s 17.78% equity interests in Yunnan
Green-Land Biological and Science Company Limited (“Yunnan”), a private
entity established in the PRC. Yunnan initially was a 20% held associate of
the Group and there was a dilution of interests in Yunnan due to additional
capital contribution from other shareholders during the year ended 31st
December, 2006.

At 31st December, 2006, the directors reviewed its carrying amount with
reference to the consideration in a sale and purchase agreement to dispose
of Treasure Land Enterprises Limited (“Treasure Land”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and which had the entire interests in Yunnan, and
accordingly an impairment loss of HK$5,853,000 was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS — GROUP AND
COMPANY

The amount represents the investments in Hong Kong listed equity securities
which are held for trading. Fair value for these investments have been
determined by reference to their quoted prices at the balance sheet date.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within the
section on operating activities as a part of changes in working capital in the
cash flow statement.
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B=

wEWHKIE - ERFTER

R-_ZEZE+FE+-_F=+—H Bk
BUET &R Z 29,792,000 BT 2 &8 TH
REHEETHEEHREZMERFTE
ESHE ZIREME -

=

+4+ = H=+—HI%/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007

30. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED CHARGES - GROUP

As at 31st December, 2007, the balance included the deposits received of
HK$29,792,000 for the sales of certain properties held for sale and disposals

of investment properties held for sale.

31. BA-AREERARF 31. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY
RANRZERAEBELE - FTEIKRD The share capital of the Company consists only of ordinary shares. All shares
R WEUIR B R BB AR AN o are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital.
SREE.01ET SREE.2ET
ALk E] ALk E] RA
Number of shares of Number of shares of
HK$0.01 each HK$0.2 each Share capital
“ETAE ZEEANF CEEHE ZBTRE CITtE ZETNF
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(i3 TR T
Notes ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE : Authorised:
FMzEBRK Ordinary shares at
beginning of year 30,000,000 30,000,000 - - 300,000 300,000
Bina bt Share consolidation @ (30,000,000) - 1,500,000 - - -
EINEERAR Increase of authorised
share capital (b) - 1,500,000 - 300,000 -
FrRZEBR Ordinary shares at end
of year - 30,000,000 3,000,000 - 600,000 300,000
BEIRER Issued and fully paid:
FMzEBRK Ordinary shares at beginning
of year 17,223,311 14,353,311 - - 172,233 143,533
BITEIRG Issuances of new shares (© 2,739,130 = 35,000 = 34,391 =
B A Share consolidation @) (19,962,441) = 998,122 = - =
REEHR Subscription of new
shares (e) - 2,870,000 206,600 - 41,320 28,700
FrRZEBR Ordinary shares at end
of year - 17,223,311 1,239,722 - 247,944 172,233

—EELEEH
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e —FZFF+=H=+—HIFFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

31. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

31.

BRAR-AREBRARQE]

()

(d)

Bin & ot

BER-_ZT+FE_A+-BHETZRE
FRAE@RAZ —BLYBRAER - AQF]
BERETRRBITRATE20RFREE
0.01 BT ZRHEH A1 RFRAE.2E
TZRD  AZETEE-_A+=H#4
W o AN\ 2 A TE MR A /300,000,000
7T - 189 /4 1,500,000,000 B A% 15
PRE{E 0.2 T °

BINEERAR

% B FHNERR 1,500,000,000 B & A% E (E
0.2087L 2 LM - AR R ZIETERA
#£300,000,000 7 7T( 45 4 1,500,000,000
BREER SREMB2BT)®ME
600,000,000 7 7T. (4 A 3,000,000,000 A%
TG - FREEO0.20/87T) ° HINATE
BAER-_ZTLERA-THARITZ
RERAFTAS FEAQBREIAE -

BITHR

RZFZLF—HA=+=0 ' XRAREB
%% 172,739,130,434% & & @ H0.01 75
T2 ERBR(FREM0.0254 7T ) &
EEITRA - BITZEHMRM B ERE
Twente 51 % &g 2 {8 KA Twente 2 1
FAEMERE - BRAGEHIEE NI E38(a)) °

RZZZELF=A+NA ' AAR@EBE
735,000,000 IR EFRRMEE 0.2 T 2 iR
& (FAXIEE 0.5 L) ANE BATARA »
BATZEMRG AIEWRE Sharp World
Investments Limited 100% A& #E 2 18 K
IR ER - BRI T 38() i) ©

AR

RZZFZLFXNALH AREIH—F
BUYE=FIURBERE  BUHUTR
0.62 78 7T 2 RMEE R 110,000,000 & &
FRTEE 0.2 B2 LimAR - A&HNBRATA M
A% % - RERMDZMERIBFEOA
68,100,000/ 7T © A2 RIS L FT 45 3018
FHEAEARARBYEZETEERE -

RYIBHRIERER AR
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

Notes:

(a)

Share consolidation

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting held
on 12th February, 2007, with effect from 13th February, 2007, twenty shares
of HK$0.01 each of the issued and unissued share capital of the Company were
consolidated into one share of HK$0.2 each. The authorised share capital of the
Company remained at HK$300,000,000 but was divided into 1,500,000,000
shares of HK$0.2 each.

Increase of authorised share capital

The authorised share capital of the Company of HK$300,000,000 divided
into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each was increased to
HK$600,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
by the creation of an additional 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20
each. The increase in authorised capital was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 25th May, 2007.

Issuance of new shares

On 23rd January, 2007, the issued share capital was increased by the issue of
2,739,130,434 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.025 per
share. The issuance of new shares is used as the consideration for acquiring 51%
equity interest and respective loan balance in Twente as detailed in note 38(a)(i).

On 18th March, 2007, the issued share capital was increased by the issue of
35,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each at the price of HK$0.5 per share.
The issuance of new shares is used as the consideration for acquiring 100%
equity interest and the shareholder’s loan in Sharp World Investments Limited as
detailed in note 38(a)(ii).

Subscription of new shares

On 7th June, 2007, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
an independent third party to subscribe 110,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2
each at the subscription price of HK$0.62 per share. The net proceeds from the
subscription of shares, after deducting all related expenses, were approximately
HK$68.1 million. The Company intended to use the net proceeds to invest in
some suitable investments to be identified by the Company.
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31.

32.

b5/

BAR-AREBRADE

R-ZZETLHFLtAHEAB AARE—F
BYE=FRIRERE - B ATR
0.53 7 7T 2 R % (B 7R 18 96,600,000 it &
REIE 0.2 T2 E@AR - LMBRFTBE
R - RERG ZFTERIBFEL A
51,100,000 7T ° AR B ZEFE R
BFERE—HNBARZREER @ {E
BEKEE 2 FE -

(e)  ETI LRI

R-ZT+E+AN\A  AARHEEFFH
FERRB([ES ]I —HERERZ
Bt - EEBERERA - RETHRRE
#0.015 % 70 & % 7] 7R H& 240,000,000 12
RIRERE - ZFIE LT RRIEBH HRG
FEHER - Bl BITREZ E BB 81T
Rk 2418 A B A TR AR 0.42 77T
RBEARRZFRG - AR B BETRRE
FBEEAZEBERITRRIEESE 36
18 A & B R A T iR B AR 0.45 7 T3R8 -
MERBEHAMELAE - BHRARESE
B 5 SRR AN A B 1 BT AR D Z AR

EHEEREBEESHESREFED
3,600,000 7T + Wit ARARIEE R -
R B REEEAITE - HE— S ER
B & 5% 100,800,000 8T ° AR B
FIBRBERARARRNMEBZIRERE - &
A - WETE AR EE - RZEE L
FHZA=Z+—BRITEZRREES
240,000,000 15 °

BBt

BAARRZZEE_FRA=THET
ZERBFAE BB ERRER
AR BER A — TR ET R AR AT &) ([ %At
&) FFABRAR _ZFTTF+—A
THARMZ B8 ([E5t8)
M EENEF IR IEFIRIZER &
B 2 EEAE - RFTET &R - B
EREERDEMBAE -
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31.

32.

SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

On 5th July, 2007, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
an independent third party to subscribe 96,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2
each at the subscription price of HK$0.53 per share. The net proceeds from the
subscription of share, after deducting all related expenses, were approximately
HK$51.1 million. The Company intended to use the net proceeds as a
shareholder’s loan to one of its subsidiary for acquisition of property.

(e) Issuance of unlisted warrants

On 8th October, 2007, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Quam Securities Company Limited (“Quam*”) that Quam will procure for placees
to subscribe for up to 240,000,000 unlisted warrants at HK$0.015 per warrant.
The unlisted warrants conferring the rights to subscribe for new shares of the
Company at HK$0.42 per share for a period of 24 months from the date of issue
of the warrants and at HK$0.45 per share for a period from the first day of 25th
month after the date of issue of the warrants up to the expiry of the 36th month
from the date of issue of warrants. Each of the subscription prices is subject to
adjustments. Each warrant carries the right to subscribe for one new share of
the Company.

The net proceeds of approximately HK$3.6 million is raised immediately and
included in the warrant reserve. If the warrants are exercised in full, further
funds of up to HK$100.8 million will be raised. The Company intended to use
the proceeds for investment in projects to be identified by the Company. During
the year, no warrants have been exercised and there are 240,000,000 warrants
outstanding as at 31st December, 2007.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 30th May, 2002, a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme"”) was adopted by the Company. The New Scheme replaced
the share option scheme adopted on 17th November, 2000 (the “Old
Scheme”) but without prejudice to any share option previously granted
under the Old Scheme prior to its termination. Since the adoption of the New
Scheme, no further options can be granted under the Old Scheme.

—BTLEEH
Annual Report 2007
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RRBRILFE > B EZERHE
HBAEEXBRIN 2EEBRBHEA -
Ml AER2EARRESZ(EBR
HITRIFRTES) AEEEMER X
AEBTRE 2 EXBERNMEBER(Z
ERREAEEERIER QLA
ELRRE) - 8RN T _FAA
=T BEAEXN BBRIFEAEAMTT A EHK
B3] - % B HE10 FHEANB -

B IEEAR D BRI B L - RITER
Bk AN R AN 2 ) B b BB AR AE AT I
1% TR 2T A ERAEm A T 31T 2R
NIBE - TESEBBAAARKMBAEE
BTN 2 10% ©

BRIEER D RIARRALAE - PEMR+ &
HERE - SR28 AR EHARE
BRAN 2 (T EL A R AR R AT B 3 2 BB A
#(BRETERERTE)TEE - B
BB TFRTZEARRRNEE - T
BHEBARREHEITRMZ1% - 1K
H 2 BB S K 2 B 81 B B a A IR
o REBRRARS DERRIE

RITER B R AR B Z E A E MR
BB R ERARTTRE ZPTA B REM A
FERTZRODER  THEBEBATHEE
1T 2 30% © AA# H B8 AR 4 S B BER
BALRE  ATBREARFEME
PRt &R R A -

MAARAREE  FETRAEREE
BRKFEES B ZBHBEAR D ERE -
ERIALEYIENTES T & BIER
EREEBRAZEREIERITES) it
o LEAN  RRMER =@ A HAf m A
PNEIEBREKBIIFRITEZTHFE
BEEZHBEARL ZBRES R 2BG
HBBEAR AT ERDETRG
201% » RBEGERARRRGRESL
HElZ EX U m{ERTE ) #84 5,000,000
BT BRIBERRAS FERRILE -

The Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and reward to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the New Scheme include
the directors (including executive and non-executive directors), other
employees and any professional advisor and business consultant of the
Group from time to time determined by the directors as having contributed
or who may contribute to the development and growth of the Group. The
New Scheme became effective on 30th May, 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, remains in force for 10 years from that date.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme
or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
adoption.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted to each participant including both exercised and unexercised options
under the New Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under any share
option schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is a proposed grantee of
the share options). In addition, any share options granted to substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the official closing
price of he Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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32. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. Each share option vested immediately at the date when the
option is accepted, which is the commencement of the exercise period. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the term of the New Scheme at
any time during the period commencing one week from the date on which
the option is accepted and expiring on a date to be notified by the directors
to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10 years from the date on
which the New Scheme is adopted.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon
exercise of the options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued
by the SEHK on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued be the SEHK
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant. The
subscription price will be established by the board of directors at the time the
option is offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the New Scheme after the date of the 10th
anniversary of the adoption of the New Scheme.

—BTLEEH
Annual Report 2007
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32. BiRiEw) 32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
E5tE Old Scheme
REBEE—_TZT+F+-_A=1+—RHIL™ Details of options granted by the Company under the Old Scheme to the
BAEEKXEAXN KNATIREBEESZIRA executive directors and full-time employees of the Group to subscribe for
EEHTEEREBIES R LEIRRE shares in the Company during each of the two years ended 31st December,
RIEBARERMD - FBEWOT 2007 are as follows:
BREEE
Number of share options
R=ZFtF R=FZtF
—B—H +=g=+-8
SHAMERER EREZHESR" BREZITRE 8 RITE FREMK e RATE
Name or Date of grant Exercise price Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding at
category of of share of at 1st January, during the 31st December,
participants options * share options 2007 year 2007
(M= (i) (B=E (i)
(note (i) (note (ii))
£
Directors
FEIERLE —hhtFtBtH 7.60 45,000 (45,000)% -
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 7th July, 1997
RIfEES
Former director
BRE A —TE—F=ANA 3.89 1,500,000 (1,500,000)* -
Mr. Chen Chao 9th March, 2001
1,545,000 (1,545,000) -
Hitfgg
Other employees
& —TE—F=ANA 3.89 450,000 (450,000)* -
In aggregate 9th March, 2001
—TT—F=ANA 3.89 3,000,000 (3,000,000)* -
9th March, 2001
—TT—F=ANA 3.89 75,000 - 75,000
9th March, 2001
T FtA=+=H 3.89 15,203 (15,203)* =
23rd July, 2001
—TT—FN\A+=H 3.89 37,500 (37,500)% -
13th August, 2001
3,577,703 (3,502,703) 75,000
5,122,703 (5,047,703) 75,000
INREFEIGITIEE
Weighted average
exercise price 3.9226 3.9231 3.8900

114 EEEESEENS
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32. BIRHE ) 32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
BREHR
Number of share options
RZZRRE RZZEXE
-A-H TZA=t-H
SEAR AR BRESE BRESLAR” BRETEOR™ BREGEE™ HARTR AP HARTRE
Name or Share  Date of grant of Outstanding at Outstanding
category of option Share Exercise period of  Exercise price of 1stJanuary,  Lapsed during at 31st December,
participants type options” share options™*  share options™** 2006 the period 2006
E£3
Directors
FEREE —hNtE —hNtE —MNEEEATHERE 0.38 900,000 - 900,000
Mr. Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart 1997 tAtA ZZRELATNA
7th July, 1997 15th July, 1997 to
14th July, 2007
AEES
Former director
3t 22 f I ZZT-5=f-tRZ 0.1945 30,000,000 - 30,000,000
Mr. Chen Chao 2001 =ANA Z-TE+-A1A
9th March, 2001 21st March, 2001 to
16th November, 2010
Z3T-% “FZ-F=-f-1+-HZE 0.1945 30,000,000 (30,000,000 -
=ANA ZE-Z2ET-A1H
9th March, 2001 21st March, 2001 to
16th November, 2010
ZFT-% “T3-%-f-H% 0.1945 2,580,000 (2,580,000) -
+A=1=H i e el el
23rd July, 2001 1st January, 2001 to
31st December, 2006
ZFT-% ZTT-5tR-RAZE 0.1945 2,580,000 (2,580,000) -
+tA=t=A ZERHERAZTH
23rd July, 2001 1t July, 2002 to

30th June, 2007

66,060,000 (35,160,000) 30,900,000

—ETLEER
Annual Report 2007 1 1 5
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32. BIRE® 32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
BREHA
Number of share options
REBERE RIBERE
-A-H +ZA=1-H
SEARERER BRESE BRERLAS BRETEOE™ BRETEE™ WA B RN HARTR
Name or share  Date of grant of Outstanding at Outstanding
category of option Share Exercise period of  Exercise price of Ist January,  Lapsed during at 31st December,
participants type options* share options™  share options™** 2006 the period 2006
EftfES
Other employees
aft e & S I & S “3T-5=f-1+RZ 0.1945 9,000,000 - 9,000,000
In aggregate 2001 =ANA ZZ-TE+-A1A
9th March, 2001 20th March, 2001 to
16th November, 2010
Z3T-F Z3T-fF “$3-F-f-1-HZ 0.1945 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
2001 ZANA “E-BET-ATiR
9th March, 2001 21st March, 2001 to
16th November, 2010
ZTT-F Z3T-fF —$3-F-f-+-A% 0.1945 1,500,000 = 1,500,000
2001 ZANA “ERLET-ATAR
9th March, 2001 22nd March, 2001 to
16th November, 2007
ZTT-F Z3T-fF ZTT-§\AZRZE 0.1945 25,000,000 (25,000,000)* -
2001 tA=t=H ZEERELAZTAE
23rd July, 2001 2nd August, 2001 to
26th July, 2006
ZTT-F Z3T-fF ZTT-F\RtHRZE 0.1945 48,862,800 (48,862,800)" -
2001 tA=+=H ZZEEN\ANR
23rd July, 2001 15th August, 2001 to
8th August, 2006
Z3T-F Z3T-fF “FT-§-f-RZE 0.1945 25,966,050 (25,966,050)* -
2001 +A=t=A “ERHFH-A=1-H
23rd July, 2001 Ist January, 2002 to

31st December, 2007

116 ElGEEEEins
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32. BIREw® 32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
BREE
Number of share options

WIBERE WZEERE
—-B-H +ZR=t-H
SEARERER BRESE  BRERLESR" BRETESET BREGEE™ HARTHRE BRXM HARITHRE
Name or share Date of grant of Outstanding at Outstanding
category of option Share Exercise period of  Exercise price of 1st January, Lapsed during at 31st December,
participants type options” share options™  share options*** 2006 the period 2006
“F%-F —F5-F —“Z$T-F-f-HZ 0.1945 1,054,100 (1,054,100) -

2001 +tA=t=A ZZTtF+ZA=1-H

23rd July, 2001 1st January, 2002 to

31st December, 2007
“FT-F —F5-F “ZT-FtR-HZE 0.1945 27,020,150 (26,716,050)% 304,100

2001 +A-t=H ZETHERA=TH

23rd July, 2001 1t July, 2002 to

30th June, 2007
“FT-F —FT-F —“Z$T-F-f-HZE 0.1945 750,000 (750,000)¢ -

2001 JAV; B t= ZELE+ZA=1-H

13th August, 2001 1st January, 2002 to

31st December, 2006
“FT-F —F5-F “Z$T-FtR-HZE 0.1945 750,000 - 750,000

2001 NA+=AH S oy e =

13th August, 2001 Tt July, 2002 to

30th June, 2007

199,903,100 (128,349,000) 71,554,100

265,963,100 (163,509,000 102,454,100
MEFIHRE
Weighted average exercise price 0.1951 0.1945 0.1961

—ETLEER
Annual Report 2007 1 1 7
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32. BIR¥E &)

#atE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

New scheme

REBEE_ZTLF+_A=1+—HILW
BFERSFERN - ARBRBEFHAEEA
SERERLBEREUREARRB K
- FBEWT

Details of options granted by the Company under the New Scheme to the
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company during each
of the two years ended 31st December, 2007 are as follows:

118

BhEHE
Number of share options
RZBBLE
R-BBLE tZB=+-R
SEAEZRER BRESRLESR" -fA-H FRERY HATE
Name or Date of grant of BREZTESR™ BREZTEE™  Outstanding at Outstanding at
category of share Exercise period of ~ Exercise price of 1st January, Granted during 31st December,
participants options* share options™*  share options™** 2007 the year 2007
(B (i)
(note (i)
3
Directors
Theks S S | ot oy el = 0.72 - 7,100,000 7,100,000
Mr. Wong Chung Tak 12th February, 2007 Z-—#RA-thA
21st February, 2007 to
29th May, 2012
Bl S = S S = 0.72 - 7,100,000 7,100,000
Mr. Tse Kam Tai 12th February, 2007 ZT-—FRA=ThAH
21st February, 2007 to
29th May, 2012
E'¢ ik S 2l “FZtE-R-1-RE 072 - 6,900,000 6,900,000
Mr. Wong Ngo, Derick 12th February, 2007 ZE-—FRA-ThAH
21t February, 2007 to
29th May, 2012
SEEM/ME S S | 8 ey el = 0.72 - 6,900,000 6,900,000
Miss Chong Kally 12th February, 2007 Z2-—5RA=ThH
21st February, 2007 to
29th May, 2012
- 28,000,000 28,000,000
HftfES
Other employees
A “ERE=FTATHEA “EE=E+—A-t)\AE 1508 750,000 - 750,000
In aggregate 14th October, 2003 ZEE\FT-AZtRR (G0
28th November, 2003 to (note (i))
26th November, 2008
bl = “FZtE_R-1+-RZE 0.72 = 13,800,000 13,800,000
12th February, 2007 —E--FRA=-thA
21st February, 2007 to
29th May, 2012
750,000 13,800,000 14,550,000
RERZEA S S | 8 oy el = 0.72 - 7,100,000 7,100,000
Eligible participants 12th February, 2007 “2-—#RA=ThAH
21st February, 2007 to
29th May, 2012
750,000 48,900,000 49,650,000
METITREE
Weighted average exercise price 1.508 0.7200 0.7319

RYIBHRIZER AR A

Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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32. BIRHE ) 32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
it aEl (&) New scheme (Continued)
BREZE
Number of share options
WZBBRE
RoBENE +ZB=t+-A
SEABEZRER BREZRLERS" -A-H FREREE HARITE
Name or Date of grant of BREZTEDE™ BREZGEE™  Outstandingat Outstanding at
category of share Exercise period of ~ Exercise price of 1st January, Granted during 31st December,
participants options* share options™  share options™** 2006 the year 2006
(FEE (i)
(note (ii))
AfEg “E2E=FtH 1A “ER=E-AT\RE 0.0754 20,000,000 (5,000,000 15,000,000
Other employees 14th October, 2003 R N\Ft-A=1/B

28th November, 2003 to
26th November, 2008

—SELEFR
Annual Report 2007 1 1 9
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32. BIRE =) 32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Hat 8l (&)

New scheme (Continued)

(@ M-EZE+F—A—HMHKRITE (@)  The share options outstanding as at 1st January, 2007 granted to Mr.
ZERTFTEEBEEZERETR Lee Kuo Ching, Stewart were in accordance with the general mandate
BARAGIR—ALhLtEENA+H granted by the shareholders to the directors at the annual general
BAZRERAFAE LIRER T meeting of the Company held on 10th June, 1997.

B MERE -

by FEMEANR—_ZENELA+LE (b)  Mr. Chen Chao resigned as non-executive director of the Company on
HEEARDA ZIEHITE S B 17th July, 2006 and acted as the senior consultant of the Company up
o WEEARRZE FEBEMRZE to 31st December, 2006.

—EERF+-_A=+—H-

iy RRBEHF(E20E80.0138 T (i Upon the share consolidation of every 20 shares of HK$0.01 each into
2R E A1 RER0.208IT2 1 share of HK$0.20 each became effective on 13th February, 2007,
BH)B=EZTLF-_A+=A4% the exercise prices of HK$0.3800, HK$0.1945 and HK$0.0754 per
M 1% - B H%0.38007% T ~ 0.1945 share were adjusted to HK$7.60, HK$3.89 and HK$1.508 per share
P57 % 0.0754 T 2 1T E(E 5 Bl respectively.

AR FEIR7.608TT  3.89 T
% 1.508 77T °

(i) MERHeEHBE-_ZEZT+F A (i) Upon the share consolidation became effective on 13th February,
+=B4EWE RKITEZERE 2007, the outstanding options were consolidated on the basis of 20
TiRG 20BN EH A1 RERD 2 share options into 1 option.

REEEITEOHE 2 AR -

@ ZEERE FEAeFE LB & The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
BEETEHzHABAE - the commencement of the exercise period.
TEAENARAREE=EAR **  The exercise period will lapse in three months after the resignation of
ENE grantee.

* k% * % %

%

WARRZEAHBRRSEEY
XA M EMBEURE - %F
BREZITEEN T AR -

REBRENABRATEH AARE
BALER2EEZEARBKY -

ZERBRERNBREZITES
JE R T R e

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

These share options were lapsed three months after the grantee
ceased to be eligible participant of the Group.

These options were lapsed due to the expiry of the option’s exercise
period.

YRR IER B R AR
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited
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HE-_FTTLF+=H=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

32. BIRHE#)

a8 (E)

N=FEAFLEELEABBRE - T
BT A R385 B A 26 52 — 3 8 ) R
EHRARF R BT EEL 2 WK
B2 AT

32. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

New scheme (Continued)

No share options were granted in 2006. The following significant
assumptions were used to derive the fair values of share options granted in
2007, using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model:

—TTEF

2007

e H B AR Date of grant —ZEE+F-A+=H
13th February, 2007

TEERR IR Expected volatility 55.03%
TRHATTE B HA Expected Exercise Date —ZEEN\F-_A+=H
12th February, 2008

5 [ B 1 Risk-free interest rate 413%
TEHAE AR S Expected dividend yield i
Nil

T8 H R B R A5 2 A AR (B 2 B S 0
WRBTAALER - HEMERES
BRERAONE - AR ER 2 EHH
R TSRS R 2 S T 0

& H#95,598,000% 7T 2 1B B BB 2
B AZERLEEABRER(ZEE
N ) - HIRRES D AR B
s (EE33) - BRAARELE 2K
FANRRZ L EREREMEE -

R-ZBE+E+-_F=+—H BEHE
PR B LB E R BN ARITE
2D 28 B 549,725,000 (===
JNEE 0 117,454,1000%) @ 1EAR R BIREZ
BHHERTRNZ24% (ZBEENE
0.7%) ' IEFHFIHAE LR AH4.0F
(T RF 4TF) -

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s
share price, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted based on management'’s best estimate.

In total, approximately HK$5,598,000 of employee compensation expense
has been included in the consolidated income statement for 2007 (2006:
Nil), the corresponding amount of which has been credited to employee
compensation reserve (note 33). No liabilities were recognised on the equity-
settled share-based payment transactions.

At 31st December, 2007, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remain outstanding under the share option schemes
was 49,725,000 (2006: 117,454,100) representing 4% (2006: 0.7%) of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date and the weighted average
remaining contractual life of 4.0 years (2006: 4.7 years).

—BTLEEH
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33. fif® 33. RESERVES
RE Group
AREB 2 REEESBELMNEINRE—FE The amount of the Group's reserve and the movements for the current and
CERBEVNGEEEZEEHR  FNA prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
IR REL41TE42 8 - on pages 41 to 42 of the financial statements.
NN | Company
RIVEE  HaRs BRERE AREIREE  REFB #zm
Share Contributed Share option Warrant Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total

THAT TAT TATL TAL TAT THAT
HK'S000  HK'$000  HK'S000  HK'S000  HK'$000  HK'$000

TR F-A—H At 1st January, 2006 354,078 588,178 - - (332,879) 609,377
[0 Placing of new shares 57,400 - - - - 57,400
HERERH Expenses incurred in
MEEZRX connection with
placing of shares (2,426) - - - - (2,426)
FNEE Loss for the year - - - - (43,550) (43,550)
RZFEAF+-A=+-HBR At 315t December, 2006
R=FZ+5—F—H and 1st January, 2007 409,052 588,178 - - (376,429) 620,801
REMR Subscription of new shares 78,078 = = = = 78,078
BITHR Issuance of new shares 51,587 = = = = 51,587
HERERH Expenses incurred in
MEEZHX connection with subscription
of shares 31 - - - - 31
KR RE Grant of share options - - 5,598 = = 5,598
BATIE ERRER Issue of unlisted warrants - - = 3,564 = 3,564
FREF Profit for the year - - = 3,723 3,723
R=ZE+F+-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 538,686 588,178 5,598 3,564 (372,706) 763,320

122 ElEEEE i
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(a)

(b)

2 -FFLF = J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3. e

BamBReR
$’§IZ‘%&%7§"% KEEZ LA T W
BRBFRE: —WNATFL

H-i—/\EIZ;‘%IE%E%XZM
B IERBEHEEIEITUE
R 2 RN R PR A T B B A BB A
Bt A Rl AR 0 B 2 il 2 = 48
—ET=FNA-HZRAEA
TR 2R - Ty AN A A ER R
AR DR B 1R 2 R
RZZEZE—F+-_A=+—HZ
ZTEBIRR 2 -

EEREBES
BRBEFREA  RBEBEAE TR
AIZBEEL B D IRAT - #EH

DREBEPESHENBEET ZH
BEFEEATHEBEES - B
HHEEZE LR ESTE 2HE
R/RRBERME » AEFE
EEAAIHIK - AT ARHEER
S AR RN S AE B AN (b B
7o

33. RESERVES (Continued)

(a)

Contributed surplus

The Group's contributed surplus amount is the net effect of the
amount that arose from the group reorganisation on 18th July,
1990, which represented the difference between the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued under the reorganisation scheme,
in exchange for the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired and the amount that arose from the capital reorganisation
on 1st April, 2003 which represented the balance of the credit amount
arising from the capital reduction and share premium cancellation
after the elimination with the accumulated loses of the Company as
at 31st December, 2001.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain companies in the PRC
are required to transfer part of their profits after tax determined under
the PRC accounting standards to the statutory reserve fund, before
profit distributions are made. The amounts of the transfers are subject
to the approval of the boards of directors of these companies and/or
articles of association. The statutory reserve fund in non-distributable
and may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation issues by
way of paid-up capital.
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3. B

()

RREE R

—EELE+ANB AR
RIEEEEHFARQ A E
mnﬂi—@m%%m Bt
EEBIERAREA REMHR

R EZCOSHE TR Z A RE
240,000,000 B X HEE - Z F
FE | T 3R AR AE 2B B A W 1 SR A A
Bl BNEBRTRABREZFEAEE
TRBEE24EA —BFHHARA
AEER0NEBTRERRRZ
FRMD  ARBEITRAREERES
2B5EAACERERITRARERS
361E A & B W A 2 § §2 0.45
IR - MERBESAIELY
AE BHRBEIMERER
AN BRET AR 2 FER o

oh Zl 5%

ZHEEKREBEESHARIEE
3,600,000 7T+ W &t A R B
% {7 o W 50 IR 4 38 2B &

T1E BE—PEBEERS
100800000,%7t NN B
FEREARARR MR ZRE

HE-FR UAETELMR
%%%‘E@i%ﬁti—k_ﬂ

ST —BRITEZRBEE
240,000,000 7 °

YRR IER B R AR
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33. RESERVES (Continued)

(0

Warrants reserve

On 8th October, 2007, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Quam Securities Company Limited (“Quam”) that
Quam will procure for placees to subscribe for up to 240,000,000
unlisted warrants at HK$ 0.015 per warrant. The unlisted warrants
conferring the rights to subscribe for new shares of the Company at
HK$0.42 per share for a period of 24 months anniversary from the
date of issue of the warrants and at HK$0.45 per share for a period
from the first day of 25th month after the date of issue of the warrants
up to the expiry of the 36th month from the date of issue of warrants.
Each of the subscription prices is subject to adjustments. Each warrant
carries the right to subscribe for one new share of the Company.

The gross proceeds of HK$3.6 million is raised immediately and
included in the warrant reserve. If the warrants are exercised in full,
further funds up to HK$100.8 million will be raised. The Company
intended to use the proceeds for investment in projects to be
identified by the Company. During the year, no warrants have been
exercised and there are 240,000,000 warrants outstanding as at 31st
December, 2007.
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34, FIERIEEE

MBARBRZELEHEEE (AFE)
ZEBBHBRAFREZEBHHEIMT

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The major components of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised by
subsidiaries and movements thereon during the year are as follows:

FEBR MR EE
g RAtEN  RRERE

REHE HEEf i Efthx hEgE At &t
Allowances  Impairment
Accelerated ~for inventories, loss of
tax trade and other property, plant  Revaluation Tax
depreciation receivables and equipment o properties losses Others Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=2% 5-A-H At 15t January, 2006

\

FRGIA) /MR EFARRR (Crediticharge to consolidated income
statement for the year

SAER Credit to equity

HENBARRSER Eliminated on disposals of subsidiaries

RZEE ET2A=1-H At 315t December, 2006

ENiREREERR Charge to consolidated income statement

EHHE Exchange reallignment

RZEELET-A=1-H At 315t December, 2007

1442 3,267 405 = = 617 5731
= = = (1,663) 1016 (519 (1,166)

= = = (579) = = (579)
(1,442) (3.267) (405) = = (%) (5212)
= = = (2,24) 1016 = (1,226)
(44) = = (13367) (1,016) = (14427)

= = = 278 = = 278

(44) = = (15,331) = = (15,375)

REER - REEAREARTAREKER
25 K| 2 B TE B8 387,464,000 78 7T (=
T N4 1 955,294,000/ 7T) ° A
EEE (T T /N4F : 5,806,000 )
ERERELERBEIE o AR RIEFR
SHEETEA - WAL T 387,464,000
T (=TT N4 ¢ 949,488,00078 7T)
ERELERIBEE °

REEH  AEBTAEZEBEL(ZZE
7N 12,290,000 7870 ) 2 AT HIBR BT =
BE o p A T AE 0 A B SR AR E A A A AR
SHATNBRE R =5 EEHEEET
RERB AR EREE -

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$387,464,000 (2006: HK$955,294,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$Nil (2006:
HK$5,806,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$387,464,000 (2006: HK$949,488,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the balance sheet date, the Group also has other deductible temporary
differences of HK$Nil (2006: HK$2,290,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

—BTLEEH
Annual Report 2007

125




B FEERAR My RE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2T EFLFF = H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

5. MEHN L HE 35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
REER Group
(F=rdi-ya As lessee
REER - AEBERBERATESRER At the balance sheet date, the Group’s future minimum lease payment under
ZRAMSE L ER Y 2 HIR&IKE non-cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as
NESAEWT : follows:
—TTLF —TERF
2007 2006
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FNRN Within one year 383 497
EFERE=FN Within two to three years - 331
383 828
KERNLTHIEAEBRETHAE The operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for
BETEERENZ2EAS - 2B AH certain of its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for a
—E=fF o term ranged from one to three years.
ERL 7 As lessor
AEFERESEHOTHLERAKLEDY The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease
¥ HEHAE FE_+FFF-HE arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one to twenty years. The terms
BT ERBEE I MRS WIRE of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
BTN CHARRS - provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
REZ Z2YERES WAL 19,550,000 Property rental income earned during the year was HK$19,550,000 (2006:
TT(ZZZREF £ 9,316,000/87T) ° HK$9,316,000).
REEH  AEEEBAFPIIEZHER At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
EEMGHESOT : following future minimum lease payments:
—TTLF —TERF
2007 2006
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FNRN Within one year 12,925 12,798
FFEERFN(BEMFRIEEN) In the second to fifth year inclusive 16,829 29,460
hF% After five years 15,237 11,400
44,991 53,658
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35.

36.

2-F

REMOZH @)

b ==

RAF

AR R WEAL AT E AL ETHL A

o

H fhRdE

(a)

(b)

(©)

RZEERF+=_A+HA
Zx BEHPLE] X — 0 BE &
ZoBEBEERHBZ EHRBIE
# & %£5,000,00002 7t ( 8 & ®
30,657,000 7T ) 2 3 & B K -
RZEERF+_A=+—H"
1,201,000 B TERMHE FHPL B
R FBHRKIEE27 ©

RZZTZELEFE+A/\H - Sharp
World Investments Limited £218
Mt BR ARG — D EE W
EOBLEEESEERLZME
R {8 552,248,000/8 7T © N 7%
RS EI 47,023,000 57T ©

RZZEZELF+=ZA B
Glory Faith Holdings Limited £
Good Dragon Industrial Limited
I —HEEmE  BUEARE
100,856,000 H E IR K E 2 ¥
¥ - RZZEZENFRAZFTE
X B 855 1 E 85,727,000 7T ©

FLF A= f=+—HIFJE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Company

The Company does not have any significant operating lease commitments.

36. OTHER COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

()

On 15th December, 2006, Cathay entered into a loan agreement with
HPL. Pursuant to the loan agreement, Cathay provides cash advances
up to AUD5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$30,657,000) to HPL. As at
31st December, 2006, advances of HK$1,201,000 was already made
to HPL. Details of the loan was included in note 27.

On 8th October, 2007, Sharp World Investments Limited entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Everich Century Limited
to sell the property of Admiralty Centre. The total consideration
is HK$52,248,000 and the amount of HK$47,023,000 would be
received at the date of completion.

On 7th December, 2007, Glory Faith Holdings Limited entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Good Dragon Industrial
Limited to sell the property of World-Wide House in consideration of
HK$100,856,000. The amount of HK$85,727,000 would be received
at the date of completion on 26th May, 2008.

—EELFFER
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37. ERAAERE

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

RZZETNF=A A5EH
AEBZzZEELEREMERFA

YEZmE Bl AEER
EnmEEERYE—ERZ A
/\Eﬁ%wooooow:(iﬂﬁwiA

14,151,000 %7T) 2 FEBREFE
Ko ZETIRELRITRERT
ﬂJr,% cM_TEEXNEZEEF

NF775E=8E - ZEFHH
E%WSE ERERESENBEHE
BREDERFAEEERA -
BERAERAEER-_ZTZTRF
+=—A=+—HEH - AAFE
R-ZETRNFH 2 I RIBEEL%E
f& o

RAREE  KRABIME—LER
BAHRA A ARt Z/‘ﬂwiﬂ&
7% ¥ 151488,000%8 T ( = T F X
£ : 300,000 70) © AR E T
EZHBEBEAENBZRARZE
go

RAEE  ARAIEBELES
ERAR(ER])EELmE
H ARRMTESTRELE
NABELZES AEEXNE
ZH#)474,0008 L ( Z 2T N F ¢
673,000 8 7T) tEBLHAE -

TEREEABHMH

TREEAEBFMAABRIX
K BEUTHER

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In March 2004, the Group entered into a loan agreement with
Jingke Information, a joint venture of the Group, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to provide a non-revolving secured loan of up to
RMB 15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,151,000) to
Jingke Information. The loan carried interest at HKBC prime rate. The
effective interest rate in 2006 ranged between 7.75% and 8% per
annum. The loan was secured by each of the shareholders of Jingke
Information by charging their respective equity interests in Jingke
Information to the Group. The loan principal and the related interest
were expired on 31st December, 2005. Allowance for the whole
amount was made in 2006.

During the year, the Company paid HK$488,000 (2006: HK$300,000)
for the corporate secretarial services provided by Uni-1 Corporate
Services Limited. Mr. Tse Kam Fai, an executive director of the
Company, is also a director of the said company.

During the year, the Group has traded listed securities through Thing
On Securities Limited (“Thing On"), of which Mr. Wong Chung Tak,
an executive director of the Company, is also a director of Thing On.
The Group paid approximately HK$474,000 (2006: HK$673,000) to
Thing On as handling commission.

Key management personnel compensation:

Included in staff costs are key management personnel compensation
and comprises the following categories:

—BELE  —BEAR

2007 2006

FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RHESREN Short term employee benefits 3,327 6,934
P/{Hx“ﬁﬁ?iﬁiﬁ Share-based payment 3,995 =
RORAERETEI 50 Contributions to retirement benefits schemes 24 48
7,346 6,982

YRR IER B R AR
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38. EBEH 38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
) HZ2=EZ=tH&+=-B=+-—H (@) Year ended 31st December, 2007
FE
RAFE AEBKE=ZRRQ During the year, the Group acquired three companies, details as
Gl O follows:
i) R-ZEZELF—A=-+= (i) On 23rd January, 2007, the Group acquired the remaining
B K& B KETwente 51% of the share capital of Twente Company Limited,
Company Limited Z & T a company comprised investment in local and overseas
51% R - Z AT BERA subsidiaries.

WRBINBRRZIE -

WUEE D B Z BREE AFE
Acquiree’s

carrying amount Fair value

FHET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEMEE Investment properties 105,000 105,000

R RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 7,508 7,508

E 5 R E A EKARK Trade and other receivables 1,308 1,308
ERZARE R AR 258 Amount due to the group companies (22,638) (22,638)
FERTARER 2 :KIE Amount due to the shareholder (21,752) (21,752)
H A ERTARR Other payables (1,696) (1,696)

Wig 2 F A& E Net assets acquired 67,730

AFE

Fair value

FHT

HK$'000

NRS#EE 2 EBERE Purchase consideration settled in cash =

RETEEN B AR 2 H e MBS EEY Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired 7,508

g2 IRem Cash inflow on acquisition 7,508
HE-_ZFTZLtF+=ZA8 The acquired business contributed revenues of approximately
=+—HALFE WEE HK$5,512,000 and net profit of approximately HK$2,582,000

BAEANEBRRERMBALD to the Group for to the year ended 31st December, 2007.

5,512,000 7T K /3 it F 49
2,582,000 87T °

“EELFER
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38. & &6t 38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(a) BE=—_ZEZEtHF+=-H=+—H (@) Year ended 31st December, 2007 (Continued)
EE(E)
WS > SHE RSB T - Details of the net assets acquired are as follows:
—ETLHF
2007
FET
HK$'000
AR FAEFTEEITARD Purchase consideration settled in shares *
wEE 7 EERE (ME) issued at fair value (note) 68,478
HERRRER Assignment of shareholder’s loan (22,638)
HEHE & N Al R Transfer from interest in associate 33,187
gz FEE 2 A FE Fair value of net assets acquired (67,730)
PR (i 21) Goodwill (note 21) 11,297
et - Note:
BEITRMD ZATFETIREAFR The fair value of the shares issued was based on the published share
- price.
(i R-ZEZEA+HF-_F=-++ (i)~ On 27th February, 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the
B AEEYEESharp World share capital of Sharp World Investments Limited (”Sharp
Investments Limited ([ Sharp World"), a company engaged in investment properties holding.
World]) 2 2 #BR A « %A
A EHRE TR -
WEARZ
BRMEE AFE
Acquiree’s
carrying amount Fair value
FAET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEMZE Investment properties 47,980 47,980
B 5 & H A FEURBR K Trade and other receivables 6,501 6,501
R ERE R Loan from a shareholder (15,489) (15,489)
HAbEERF - FERTE R MEMWIFF  Other payables, accrual and deposit received (36,981) (36,981)
WhE 2 & EFE Net assets acquired 2,011
DPReHE CBERE Purchase consideration settled in cash =
RUEEHEB AR 2IHE KIFESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired =
Wi 2 3R & Cash outflow on acquisition -

130 ElEEEEains
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited




SR e R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_FTTLF+=H=+—HIFZ For the year ended 31st December, 2007

38. EBE O ) 38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
() BZz=—ZEZtH&+=-—HA=+—H (@) Year ended 31st December, 2007 (Continued)
FE(#E)
Wiz %8 W /ﬁﬁ AEE The acquired businesses contributed revenues of approximately
—EELFA = E +— HK$837,000 and net profit of approximately HK$4,736,000 to
BHMAAEB T B K the Group for the period from the date of acquisition to 31st
#7837,0007 7T & JF i A December, 2007. If the acquisition had been completed on 1st
#74,736,0007% 7T © fid Uk B8 January, 2007, total group revenue for the year would have

EER_ZEZ JC F£—A been HK$31,778,000 and profit for the year would have been

BT E EEWRAE A HK$10,422,800. The pro forma information is for illustrative
31,778,000 5%73&$¢F§*5ﬁ?’1 purpose only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
i A&10,422,800 7T © & results of the Group that actually would have been achieved
ZERHEMH2E > B IER had the acquisition been completed on January 2007 nor is
SEEELERZZTTEF intended to be a projected of future results.
—ATRKEEIEEER
WA KRB 2 WLAEET TR
FERERSREBE 2 BAZ o
Sharp World iU fE B #i= Sharp World holds primarily an investment property with no
ERFEEBERGSZEEY associated services at the date of acquisition. The underlying set
¥ HBAWBZEETRE of assets acquired was not integrated in forming a business to
W%%EEH&A mHRE generate revenues. As such, the directors are of opinion that
CEERA/WESharp the acquisition of Sharp World is a purchase of net assets which
World?‘:ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ Hr does not consititute a bunsiness combination for accounting
TEKARETENZER purposes.
il
W ZFEEZFBOT ¢ Details of the net assets acquired are as follows:
—ZTELF
2007
FET
HK$'000
R EE 2 BERE Purchase consideration settled in shares 17,500
AR ER Loan from a shareholder (15,489)
ks FEE 2 AT E Fair value of net assets acquired (2,011)
Bk Goodwill _

“EELFFR
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BHE —FZT4F+— H=+—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31st December, 2007
38. ¥¥& Mt @)

(@) BE=FBLF+=-A=1-H
EE(E)

(iii)

RZZEZ+F+HAAAB-
N & B Uk BGlory Faith
Holdings Limited ([ Glory
Faithl) 2 2 #HA - %A A

38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(@)

Year ended 31st December, 2007 (Continued)

(iii)

On 5th July, 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share
capital of Glory Faith Holdings Limited (“Glory Faith”), a
company engaged in investment properties holding.

WEREY R - WEARZ
IREE AFE

Acquiree’s
carrying amount Fair value
FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEMZ Investment properties 173,913 173,913
IR EH Loan from a shareholder (15,507) (15,507)

lhg-28=E7ES Amount payable for acquisition of

FERTRRIE investment properties (145,413) (145,413)
Wiz BESFE Net assets acquired 12,993
BinEE 2R eEERE Purchase consideration for shares settled in cash 12,993
EERERER Purchase of shareholder’s loan 15,507
RUEEHB AR 2SS RIFESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired =
WEg 2z Re Cash outflow on acquisition 28,500

Wi EBaRERRE
EE+FE+_A=+—H
HEAASETRKELD
1,512,000 % 7T & % Ja F1| 49
2,133,000 7T © fig W HE R
Glory Faith #ffiAk sz B #AD
EER  FASEBWZBE
1% %31,778,0007% T © &F
i A Al #% A& 115,216,000
BT BEEERHERRMHH
B - 3 3 5% AR A U B A w1
XA A BiSE R A B B R 1
MEzWmRES  NEE
T RREEELTEA -

Glory Faith AU A #IE =
HAEEEE 2 REWE -
RA U 2 A B R AR SRS
EEWA - BEAEFmE -
EEZRBWEE Glory Faith B
BEFEE  HXWTHEKA
REFEMNZEBENH -

YRR IER B R AR
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The acquired businesses contributed revenues of approximately
HK$1,512,000 and net profit of approximately of
HK$2,133,000 to the Group for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31st December, 2007. If the acquisition had
been completed on date of incorporation of Glory Faith total
group revenue for the year would have been HK$31,778,000
and profit for the year would have been HK$115,216,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purpose only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on date of incorporation nor is intended to be
a projected of future results.

Glory Faith holds primarily an investment property with no
tenants and associated services at the date of acquisition. The
underlying set of assets acquired was not integrate in forming
a business to generate revenues. As such, the directors are of
opinion that the acquisition of Glory Faith is a purchase of net
assets which does not consititute a business combination for
accounting purposes.
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

() BZ=—ZEZtH&+=-—HA=+—H (@) Year ended 31st December, 2007 (Continued)
FE (&)
W7 S FEE BT ¢ Details of the net assets acquired are as follows:
—EELE
2007
Fi&xT
HK$'000
AR EE 2 BERE Purchase consideration settled in cash 28,500
RERE K Shareholder’s loan (15,507)
g FEE 2 AT E Fair value of net assets acquired (12,993)
EES Goodwill -

390. HEHMBARIREALIEERK  39.

(a) BEZ-ZZtH¥+=-HA=+—H (a)

LFE

RZZEZE+LF=ZA=_+—H"
A X & LA X {8 40,051,000 7T
% Treasure Land Enterprises
Limited, A H & B #iTreasure Land

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

assets

Enterprises Limited Z;F&EMN

Year ended 31st December, 2007

On 21st March, 2007, the Company disposed of Treasure Land
Enterprises Limited at a consideration of HK$40,051,000. The net

of Treasure Land Enterprises Limited at the date of disposal

were as follows:

™
FHIT
HK$'000
FHEZEEFE Net assets disposed of comprise
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments 40,000
SBEANRREER Intercompany debts (19,239)
REBEEGEEEEFE Group's share of net assets disposed of 20,761
oS BB 1 R A B R Release of reserves on disposals of subsidiary (1,933)
WD B EE AR 2 RIE Waiver of amount due from disposed subsidiary 19,239
HEME ARz F W Net gain on disposals of subsidiary 1,984
40,051
PATHI AT Satisfied by:
Re Cash 40,051
HEEEZFHREMRA Net cash inflow arising on disposals:
HaRE Cash consideration 40,051
—ETLEEH
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39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

39. i

(%)

(b)

%Wﬁﬂjﬁamtiﬁ

BE-TTRF+=-A=t—H
\LEFE

MO P - R=FTFRFN

A=1B AEERHEERLE

%i‘%ﬁ%iﬁtﬁi\mﬂ& B e BR 75
2R BUE M ARRERTS o

R=ZZBEEFLA+HEB &%
EEBTE=ZFEXAELRLERT

—MEEHE UWHEERER
BHELLUGER)BRARZE
HRHE BT RZREAA
K #10,0007T ( 48 5 729,000 %
T) e ARG _ZEZERF+ A
+HHEZEK °

s RZZEEANF+=-A1+H
B A&EEHEBLE = Angel
Win Limited 3]s — 1 B B %
A& E 7 Pulrose Limited 2 235
f&#E - BLULATS R 2 R{ER1.00
%ﬁ(*ﬁiﬁ’w 8BIL) ° ZRHMN
TETRFE+T-HA—HEK

RYIBHRIZER AR A
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

(b)

Year ended 31st December, 2006

As referred to in note 9, on 30th September, 2006, the Group
discontinued its high-tech computers and servers manufacturing and
related business upon the disposal of the Discontinued operations.

On 15th July, 2006, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with F 3444, an independent third party, to dispose
of its 100% equity interest in B FEHELLOLR)ERAHE
for a consideration of RMB10,000 (equivalent to HK$9,000). The
transaction was completed on 15th December, 2006.

In addition, on 14th December, 2006, the Group has entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Angel Win Limited, an
independent third party, to dispose of its 100% equity interest in
Pulrose Limited for consideration of US$1.00 (equivalent to HK$7.8).
The transaction was completed on 1st December, 2006.
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2 -FFLF = J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

(&) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
(b) BE=ZTEEA~E+=-A=+—H (b) Year ended 31st December, 2006 (Continued)
LEFE (&)
BERIEER  EERMERSL (L The net assets of the Discontinued operations, B[ REHIERLL (b
) AR AR K Pulrose Limited A ) AT and Pulrose Limited at the date of disposals were as
HEBBZFEMNT follows:
FHT
HK$'000
FHEZEEFE Net assets disposed of comprise
AN - Interest in associates 22,526
M BE k& Property, plant and equipment 8,116
BERIBEE Deferred tax assets 5,212
FE Inventories 44,649
FEUIER R Trade receivables 160,932
HAth U xIE Other receivables 17,316
IRITHER - TR RS Bank balances, deposits and cash 9,260
FEATARER Trade payables (42,943)
SERARMEEL Intercompany debts (27,574)
HibfENFIE - BUIES RFESTEA  Other payables, deposits received and accrued charges (82,931)
RITEE Bank borrowings (50,301)
eI BT Taxation payable (2,525)
61,737
o B BB 1 R A B R Release of reserve on disposals of subsidiaries (1,295)
WD B EE AR 2 RIE Waiver of amount due from disposed subsidiaries 10,140
HE SRR E K R ARS S Gain on disposals of high-tech computers and servers
BUE R AERA TS < W manufacturing and related business operations 21,352
& E AT E A AEE Loss on disposals of other subsidiaries (579)
BRE Total consideration 91,355
PATHI AT Satisfied by:
Re Cash 62,855
P& S A R Balance of consideration receivable from disposals of
EUWREZ &k the Discontinued operations 28,500
91,355
HEEEZHREREFHE Net cash inflow arising on disposals:
HaRE Cash consideration 62,855
FTHHE 2 RIT4EER - TR S Bank balances, deposits and cash disposed of (9,260)
53,595
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39.

40.

HEMB LR REAIEFER

=\

(75 )

HE & IEXBATEZ RE A1 i
BTN -_ZEELFNAA=THLZATA
REER -

RABERBESRE - HEEKRIEES
HARBEZRERRESRE ZFENN
HOAWE - HitHERALEHAE
Bz REMREREELTAERTE -

REHREBR

BRMBERREEZERI  AREAR
BTIEREBRERE -

(@ RZZETNE-_A+NB AR
AEMBERE-—BREBER
HEEMKRIZARBYE =
HIEFDITERBZE(E
HmEl) BEZBE BR
B R k1§ 7 & 526,000,000 %
TEZD HBRAZZTZ
NE_A+NBEZE_FTZTNF
+-—A=+—H8 YEELH
36,400,000/ T - B R & # 7
XAG) B —HRBERNLE—E
IR 5 R ARG H AR R
HEE1.00E T2 — KRG (BE
FRZEBEBITHRAR) ZBRGHE
FEE IR (i) MBI E— &
FHEBEFRABFEESFAEZR
FEYERBRAB(RE]) K
A E R EE0.025% Tt 2 % 17
219,805,112 W Fr A #E A « 2
ERAERSERT (i ERZ&
REZHEBANREZERBEN
FEIEABRUBBERERERK
BETNEAZHEERR - RFAR
HeBHEadMK Iz AR RER
MREBHRAT LT - ZX 5
BERARAR-_ZEZTNE_A
Z+HRBRBEZAM -

YRR IER B R AR
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

39.

40.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The balances of consideration receivable from disposals of the Discontinued
operations will be settled in cash by the purchaser on or before 30th
September, 2007.

The impact of the disposals of the Discontinued operations on the Group's
results and cash flows in the current and prior periods is disclosed in note 9.
The impact of the other disposed companies has no material effect on the
Group's results and cash flows.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

In addition to those information disclosed else where in the financial
statements, the Group has the following post balance sheet event.

(@  On 18th February, 2008, the Company announced that Cathay
entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, an independent
third party (the “Borrower”). Pursuant to the Agreement, Cathay has
lent and the Borrower has borrowed a loan of HK$26,000,000 (the
“Loan") for a period from 18th February, 2008 to 31st December,
2008 with repayment amount of HK$36,400,000. The Loan is secured
by (i) a share charge in favour of Cathay by way of a first legal charge
over 1 share of US$1.00 in the capital of the Borrower, being the
entire issued capital of the Borrower; (ii) deed of charge executed by
the Borrower in favour of Cathay by way of a first legal charge of all
its rights, title and interest in and to 219,805,112 shares of HK$0.025
each in the capital of Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited (“Vitop”)
beneficially owned by the Borrower; (iii) the personal guarantee
executed by the ultimate beneficial owner of the Borrower as at the
signing of the Loan Agreement in favour of Cathay to guarantee the
due performance of the Borrower under the Loan. Vitop is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and whose shares are listed on the
SEHK. Details of this transaction are included in the announcement of
the Company dated 25th February, 2008.
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40. £EHEBEE (&)

RZZEZENEF-_A=+=H"
ARdlz—HAEEHREB QA
Grandtex Development Limited 2
BB =7 —IHEREF
A 21,000,000 % 7t 2 (X B U BE AL
REBSTAFES3-615  EFK
BH110-1165% Kk BEREENE
ZME(ZYE]D - ZMEER
AREBEEEN 2R AEHERER
BRETABIELEEME - BE
ZYERBHBER_EENFNA
=+ HskzZR K - HEKN=
TETNFE—A=+—HBIH "
A A& 53,0008 T &
A A A& A 63,600 L&
IR BHE AWM S 2 B -

(b)

0 e B R REUR

rEEEEZRERER - LT SR
B (BREINERR - FIEER - REBR
) BEERBREABESRR  ZF
RBHREKEERREER - REAK
ErzEERBREERRLES - 2RE
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REMBRSHEMSEFENELER
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ZRERSHERZIWT
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ERMERZEEIR - BfmR$
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B BEERATBERKE27
FLZREEE 2 BETR

RZEERE+-_A=+—0 4
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HBERHERTE  ~NFEZRH
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40.

41.

+4F+=H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31st December, 2007

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

(b)  On 22nd February, 2008, Grandtex Development Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional
agreement with an independent third party to acquire a property
situated at the whole of 6th Floor, Wings Building, 110-116 Queen’s
Road Central, 53-61 Stanley Street, Hong Kong at a consideration of
HK$21,000,000 (the “Property”). The Property is acquired together
with existing tenancy for trading purpose and will be accounted for
as properties held for sale. The purchase of the Property is expected
to be completed on or before 30th April, 2008, the lease term will
be expired on 31st January, 2009 with a monthly rental income of
HK$53,000 per month, together with an option by the existing tenant
to renew the tenancy for a term of two years at a monthly rental
income of HK$63,600 per month.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risk such as market risk
(including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk, which result from both its operating and investing activities.
According to the Group's written risk management policies and guidelines,
the financial risk shall be assessed continuously by the management taken
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial market and other
relevant variables to avoid excessive concentrations of risk. The Group has
not used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described
below.
41.1 Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in Hong Kong Dollars and
RMB respectively. No foreign currency risk has been identified for the
financial assets in PRC as they were denominated in a currency same
as their functional currency. Foreign currency risk arises from loan
receivables, which were denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency as detailed in note 27.

As at 31st December, 2006, if Hong Kong Dollars had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Australian dollar, with all other variables
held constant, profit after tax for the year and retained profits would
have been approximately HK$58,000 higher/lower mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Australian dollar-
denominated loans receivable.

—BTLEEH
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TRIEMREEBEERRE

4

1.

/43 )
(#8)

41.1

41.3

SNES B (AE)

R-ZEBEZE+tF+_A=+—H"
w78 7T 4 BT RE SR /IR 585 % - BLAT
EHMEHBEFE  AFEZ
BREEENRARBEANNEEER
WEBILY R Z BIRE R 2 INE
Ua 28/ E5i8 T _EF+/ P& %) 670,000
BT

HRARBERMEEZINERY
HINEERAR  BEREZE
BEREFNEREAR -

2= [

REBE W EER - REBRA X
bz mi5 Ak T EEIRERH
FERNERZEBESER -

RZEBEZE+tF+_A=+—H"
iR E A=/ (BEIK)0.5% - BFAT
ERBEEHFERE  AIAEE
ZARFEBRTE S KRB EF
g/ O ) 4927,0008 T (=
TN 25,00087T) o HIhE
TERAEEREBELFREZF
BAIRATE -

B ERE

AEEZEMERRERRIE LT
REDEREBBRURFET
R TEEERTR

HREMZBAES  BEEE
BEEEER EBAREER =
TLF ¥R ES R A26.28%
1235.86% (=TT /NF 1 14.46%
’21.15%) ° fifi sz S & % 2 FT R
BREASHEEZZEE @ AIE
FE 2 BRFL& 5 B 22 o0 o 2
#94,343,000% T(Z T TN F -
2,101,000587T) °

YRR IER B R AR
Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

41.1

41.2

41.3

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

As at 31st December, 2007, if Hong Kong Dollars had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Australian dollar, with all other variables
held constant, profit after tax for the year and retained profits would
have been approximately HK$670,000 higher/lower mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Australian dollar-
denominated loan receivable.

No foreign currency risk has been identified for the financial assets of
the Company as they were denominated in a currency same as their
functional currency.

Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company has no borrowing. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily
to investments in debt securities which bears floating interest rates.

At 31st December, 2007, if interest rates had increased or decreased
by 0.5% and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and retained profits would increased or
decreased by approximately HK$27,000 (2006: HK$25,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to floating interest rates
of the investments in debt securities.

Price risk

The Group and the Company is exposed to other price risk arising
from listed investments classified as financial assets held at fair value
through profit and loss.

For the listed equity securities, an average volatility of 26.28% and
35.86% has been observed in the Heng Seng Index and Shanghai A
Share Index during 2007 respectively (2006: 14.46% and 21.15%). If
the quoted stock price for these securities had increased or decreased
by that amount, the Group’s profit after tax for the year would have
been increased or decreased by approximately HK$4,343,000 (2006:
HK$2,101,000).
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

41.4

Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amount not materially different
from their fair values as at 31st December, 2007 and 2006.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, investment in
debt securities, loan receivables and bank balances represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The carrying amounts of these financial assets presented in
the consolidated balance sheet are net of impairment losses, if any.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan recei